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DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms and expressions used in this circular shall have the

following meanings:

“Acquisition”

“Agreement”

“associate”
“Board”

“Charge”

1l

“Company’

“Directors”

s

“Enlarged Group’

“Golden Sky”
“Group”

“Guarantee”

“Hong Kong”
“HSBC”

“Independent Third Party”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Lease Amendments”

“Listing Rules”

“pRC”

“Prospectus”

the acquisition by Golden Sky of a 40% (or more) interest in the Sale
Shares and the Shareholders Loans pursuant to the Agreement, as
announced by the Company on 21 October 2004

the agreement dated 18 October 2004 and effective as of 19 October
2004 entered into between Warner Bros., Village Cinemas, the
Purchasers and the Company relating to, among other things, the sale
and purchase of the Sale Shares and the Shareholders Loans and the
Guarantee

has the meaning given to this term in the Listing Rules
the board of Directors

a charge dated 18 October 2004 under which a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company has charged its 50% shareholding in
Dartina Development Limited, an associated company of the Company
(in which an associate of Village Cinemas holds the other 50%
shareholding) in favour of the Sellers

Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange

the directors of the Company, including the independent non-executive
directors of the Company

the Group and Warner Village Taiwan

Golden Sky Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in Hong Kong

the Company and its subsidiaries

the guarantee given by the Company to the Sellers under the
Agreement in relation to the performance by Golden Sky of its
obligations under the Agreement

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

a party which is not connected with any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiary or
any of their respective associates and which is not itself otherwise a
connected person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules

22 December 2004, being the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information contained
in this circular

the lease amendments referred to under “Consideration and security”
in the section headed “the Acquisition” of this announcement

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this circular
excludes Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Macau Special Administrative

Region of the PRC

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 22 December 2004
relating to the Rights Issue

1=



DEFINITIONS

“Purchasers”

“Purchase Price”

“Rights Issue”

“Rights Shares”

“Sale Shares”

“§FO”

“Sellers”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”

“Shareholders Loans”

“Special General Meeting”

“Stock Exchange”

“Substantial Shareholder”

“Village Cinemas”

“Warner Bros.”

“Warner Village Taiwan”

“HK$7’
“NT$”

“US $”

“gp”

Golden Sky and two Taiwan corporations which are Independent Third
Parties, being the purchasers of the Sale Shares and the Shareholders
Loans pursuant to the Agreement

the aggregate purchase price for the Sale Shares and related
Shareholders Loan in the amount of US$38 million (approximately
HK$296.40 million)

the issue of the Rights Shares on the basis of one Rights Share for
every four existing Shares held on the Record Date at a price of
HK$0.250 per Rights Share, details of which are contained in the
Prospectus

new Shares to be allotted and issued in respect of the Rights Issue

100% capital interest in Warner Village Taiwan in the aggregate
amount of NT$12 million (approximately HK$2.73 million)

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Warner Bros. and Village Cinemas which together hold 100% capital
interest in Warner Village Taiwan

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
holder(s) of Shares

a number of loans in the aggregate amounts of NT$429 million
(approximately HK$97.50 million) and US$59 million (approximately
HK$460.20 million) advanced by Warner Bros. and Village Cinemas
to Warner Village Taiwan

the special general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday,
10 January 2005 and convened pursuant to the notice contained in
this circular

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

Village Cinemas International Pty Ltd., a limited company
incorporated under the laws of Australia

Warner Bros. Entertainment Inc., a company incorporated in Delaware,
USA

Warner Village Cinemas Co., Ltd., a limited company incorporated
under the laws of the Republic of China

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
New Taiwan dollars, the lawful currency of the Republic of China

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America

per cent

Unless otherwise stated, amounts in US$ have been translated into HK$ at an exchange rate of US$1 to
HK$7.8, and amounts in NT$ have been translated into HK$ at an exchange rate of NT$1 to HK$0.2273, for

illustration purposes only.
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23 December 2004
To the Shareholders

Dear Sir/Madam,

1. MAJOR TRANSACTION AND
POSSIBLE VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION:
PROPOSED ACQUISITION BY A WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF
40% (OR MORE) OF THE CAPITAL INTEREST IN
WARNER VILLAGE CINEMA CO., LTD.
AND RELATED SHAREHOLDERS LOANS

2. DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION:
PAYMENT OF A DEPOSIT BY A WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY
TO THE SELLERS

INTRODUCTION

On 21 October 2004, the Board announced that Golden Sky, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
together with two other purchasers which are Independent Third Parties, had conditionally agreed with Warner
Bros. and Village Cinemas to acquire the entire capital interest in Warner Village Taiwan and the benefit of
Shareholders Loans advanced by Warner Bros. and Village Cinemas to Warner Village Cinemas for an aggregate
purchase price of US$38 million (approximately HK$296.40 million).

Of the interests in the capital interest in Warner Village Taiwan and the Shareholders Loans agreed to be
purchased by the Purchasers, Golden Sky has agreed to acquire a 40% interest at a pro-rated consideration of
US$15.2 million (approximately HK$118.56 million). The Agreement entitles each Purchaser to step-in and
purchase additional capital interest in Warner Village Taiwan at completion should the other Purchaser(s)
decide not to fulfil its/ their obligations under the Agreement at completion. If one or both of the other
Purchaser(s) fail(s) to complete its/their purchase and if Golden Sky elects to step-in and purchase the capital
interests of such Purchaser(s) under the Agreement at completion, Golden Sky shall be able to acquire at a
maximum 100% of the capital interest in Warner Village Taiwan.

*  For identification purposes only
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Assuming each Purchaser is able to fulfil its obligations under the Agreement, Warner Village Taiwan will
become an indirect associated company of the Company. If one or both Purchaser(s) fail(s) to complete its/
their purchase and if Golden Sky elects to step-in and purchase the capital interests of such Purchaser(s) under
the Agreement at completion, Warner Village Taiwan may become an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary, or
if the entire capital interest of Warner Village Taiwan is purchased, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions under the Agreement, Golden Sky has agreed to procure the
payment of US$4.56 million (approximately HK$35.57 million) to the Sellers as a deposit for its proportion of
the Purchase Price, no later than the seventh day prior to the completion date.

This circular contains (1) details of the Agreement, the Acquisition and the payment terms of the deposit
payable by Golden Sky, (2) the requisite financial information on the Group, Warner Village Taiwan and the
Enlarged Group and (3) a notice convening the Special General Meeting. The purpose of this circular is to
provide information relevant to the Acquisition, the Agreement and the deposit payable by Golden Sky under
the Agreement for Shareholders to consider and, if thought fit, to pass resolutions to approve the Acquisition
and the Agreement.

BACKGROUND

As Shareholders are aware, the Company is engaged in the expansion of its cinema network to new markets in
Southeast Asia. The Acquisition, if completed, will benefit the Company as it will extend the cinema network
of the Group to Taiwan which is an important market for Chinese and English language movies. The addition
of a substantial cinema operation in Taiwan would greatly enhance the Group’s overall position as a major
film distributor and cinema operator in Southeast Asia.

THE ACQUISITION
Agreement dated 18 October 2004 and effective as of 19 October 2004

Parties
1. Warner Bros. Entertainment Inc., a company incorporated in Delaware, USA.
2. Village Cinemas International Pty Ltd., a limited company incorporated in Australia.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries,
each of the Sellers and their respective ultimate beneficial owners is an Independent Third Party.

3. Golden Sky, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong.
4. Two Taiwan corporations.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries,
each of these two Taiwan corporations and their respective ultimate beneficial owners is an Independent
Third Party.

5. The Company (as guarantor of the obligations of Golden Sky).
Assets to be acquired under the Agreement

Pursuant to the Agreement, Golden Sky has agreed to acquire a 40% interest, and the other two Purchasers
have agreed to acquire 55% and 5% interests respectively, in:

1. the Sale Shares; and
2. the Shareholders Loans.
Consideration and security

The aggregate consideration payable by the Purchasers to the Sellers in respect of the Sale Shares and the
Shareholders Loans is US$38 million (approximately HK$296.40 million).

The portion of the consideration payable by Golden Sky for its acquisition of a 40% interest in the Sale Shares

and the Shareholders Loans is US$15.2 million (approximately HK$118.56 million). In order to provide funds
for the payment of a premium to secure certain Lease Amendments to be entered into by the respective

_4_
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landlords and Warner Village Taiwan after the completion of the Acquisition with respect to two existing
leases, each Purchaser has undertaken to provide (if required) an advance to Warner Village Taiwan upon
completion of the Agreement in an amount equal to such proportion of NT$135 million (approximately
HK$30.68 million) as its percentage of Sales Shares and related Shareholders Loans bears to 100%. In this
regard, based on the acquisition by Golden Sky of a 40% interest in the Sale Shares and the Shareholders
Loans, the pro-rata amount to be advanced (if required) by Golden Sky to Warner Village Taiwan would be
NT$54 million (approximately HK$12.27 million).

The obligations of the Purchasers under the Agreement are secured by their payment of deposits totalling
US$11.4 million (approximately HK$88.92 million). The other two Purchasers paid their deposits (totalling
US$6.84 million, or approximately HK$53.35 million) on or before the date of the Agreement, and Golden
Sky is required to pay its deposit of US$4.56 million (approximately HK$35.57 million) no later than the
seventh day prior to the completion date. The obligations of Golden Sky to pay the deposit under the Agreement
are secured by a Charge also dated 18 October 2004 under which a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
has charged in favour of the Sellers, inter alia, its 50% shareholding in and loans to Dartina Development
Limited, an associated company of the Company (in which an associate of Village Cinemas holds the other
50% shareholding). The Company has also given a guarantee in favour of the Sellers to secure the obligations
of Golden Sky under the Agreement which is limited to US$4.56 million (approximately HK$35.57 million).

Under a side letter dated 18 October 2004 between Warner Bros., Village Cinemas and Golden Sky, Golden
Sky was granted an option, by serving a written notice to the Sellers within 14 days after the execution of the
Agreement, to defer the payment of part of the portion of the consideration payable by Golden Sky upon terms
to be negotiated in good faith between the parties. Golden Sky did not exercise its option within the specified
time period, and as such, the consideration payable by Golden Sky under the Agreement would be payable in
one lump sum at completion of the Acquisition.

The Directors intend that the portion of the consideration payable by Golden Sky in the amount of US$15.2
million (approximately HK$118.56 million ) and the portion of the advance to secure the Lease Amendments
payable by Golden Sky (if required) in the amount of NT$54 million (approximately HK$12.27 million) will
be funded by a medium term loan facility of US$8 million (approximately HK$62.40 million) and net proceeds
from the proposed Rights Issue which is estimated to amount to approximately HK$62.0 million (details of
which are contained in the Prospectus), and the balance shall be satisfied by the internal resources of the
Group.

The aggregate consideration has been determined on an arm’s length basis between the Sellers and the Purchasers
having regard to factors including the audited net value of assets of Warner Village Taiwan to be acquired by
the Purchasers in the amount of approximately NT$1.82 billion (approximately HK$413.64 million), the total
investment made by the Sellers in Warner Village Taiwan in the amount of approximately NT$2 billion
(approximately HK$454.55 million), the market position achieved by Warner Village Taiwan, the net income
recorded by that company, the potential of the film exhibition industry in Taiwan and the costs of replicating a
similar network of theatres in Taiwan.

Conditions
Completion of the Acquisition is subject to the following conditions being satisfied:

(a) all authorisations, approvals or permits, if any, of any governmental authority or regulatory body of
Taiwan that are required in connection with the lawful sale of the Sale Shares and the Shareholders
Loans, being the approval of the Taiwan Investment Commission for transfer of the Sale Shares to the
Purchasers and the approval of the Taiwan Fair Trade Commission for the transfer of the Sale Shares
and the Shareholders Loans;

(b) approval of the Acquisition by the Shareholders as required under the Listing Rules;

(c) the Purchasers not having given written notice to the Sellers stating that they do not wish to proceed
with the purchase of the Sale Shares and the Shareholders Loans because the Purchasers have become
aware of some matter, fact or circumstance which is or is likely to constitute a material adverse change
under the Agreement;

(d)  the release of the guarantees given by the Sellers to HSBC in connection with a guarantee facility
extended by HSBC to Warner Village Taiwan for the maximum of NT$180 million (approximately
HK$40.91 million) or the Purchasers having provided to the Sellers cash collateral in an amount equal
to the amount of guarantees then outstanding; and
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(e) the Purchasers having executed and delivered a letter indemnifying and holding harmless each of the
current directors of Warner Village Taiwan against any claims or losses of any nature whatsoever that
such directors may incur as a result of their directorship in Warner Village Taiwan.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the conditions mentioned above have been satisfied or waived in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

Payment of a deposit by Golden Sky to the Sellers

If the conditions set out in (a) and (c) above have been satisfied, Golden Sky shall procure the payment of
US$4.56 million (approximately HK$35.57 million) to the Sellers as a deposit for the portion of the Purchase
Price payable by Golden Sky no later than the seventh day prior to the completion date. The requirement for
Golden Sky to pay this deposit is a separate obligation under the Agreement, independent of its obligation to
complete the Acquisition. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Golden Sky has not made the payment of US$4.56
million (approximately HK$35.57 million) to the Sellers.

Consequences if certain conditions are not satisfied

If the conditions set out in (a) and (c) above have not been satisfied by 5:30 pm on 31 March 2005, the
Agreement shall automatically terminate and no party shall have any claim against any other party in respect
thereof save for any accrued rights and obligations at the date of termination.

If the Agreement is not completed (1) as a result of a breach by any Purchaser or (2) the conditions set out in
(a) and (c) above have been satisfied but any of the other conditions set out in (b), (d) or (e) above has not
been satisfied by 5:30 pm on 28 February 2005, the Sellers would be entitled to retain the deposits paid by the
Purchasers.

If the Agreement cannot be completed or is terminated otherwise than for the reasons specified above, the
Sellers shall return the deposits to the Purchasers.

Possible acquisition of additional interests in Warner Village Taiwan

In the event that any Purchaser fails to perform its obligations to purchase its relevant proportion of Sale
Shares and Shareholders Loans at completion (“Affected Purchaser”), and if any of the other Purchasers
agrees to undertake the obligations of the Affected Purchaser at completion (the “Step-in Purchaser”), the
Agreement shall proceed to completion by the Step-in Purchaser(s) paying the Sellers an amount equal to the
Purchase Price that would otherwise have been payable by the Affected Purchaser less the amount of the
deposit already paid by such Affected Purchaser. In the event that the other Purchasers do not undertake the
obligations of the Affected Purchaser and the Agreement cannot be completed, the Sellers shall retain the
deposits paid by the Purchasers.

Accordingly, if one or both of the other Purchasers fail(s) to complete its/their purchase and if Golden Sky
elects to become the Step-in Purchaser, it will be acquiring additional interests in the Sale Shares and the
Shareholders Loans at the pro-rated portion of the Purchase Price less the deposit(s) already paid by the
Affected Purchaser(s). In that event, the obligations of Golden Sky under the Agreement would also increase
by an amount determined by reference to the additional interest Golden Sky would be acquiring in Warner
Village Taiwan, to be partly financed by the same means as described under the current proposed purchase of a
40% interest in the Sale Shares and Shareholders Loans of Warner Village Taiwan, with the remainder to be
financed by additional bank borrowings and/or proceeds from additional share placings (if any) other than the
Rights Issue. However, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company did not have an intention to purchase
additional capital interests in Warner Village Taiwan or arrange further placements of Shares.

Completion

Completion of the Acquisition will take place on the later of (i) seven days after satisfaction of all the above-
mentioned conditions; and (ii) the date which falls three months after the date of the Agreement (neither date
being later than 31 March 2005), or on such other date as the parties to the Agreement may agree.

INFORMATION ON WARNER VILLAGE TAIWAN

Warner Village Taiwan is one of the leading film exhibition operators in Taiwan and currently operates a total
of 83 screens at 8 sites in Taiwan with 25 screens in the Greater Taipei area (Taipei and Tien Mou), 25 screens
in the Southern Taiwan area (Kaohsiung and Tainan), and 33 screens in the central Taiwan area (Hsinchu and
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Taichung). It opened the first 17 screen megaplex theatre in the Taipei’s Hsin-Yi district in 1998. The Directors
have been informed by the Sellers that the screens operated by Warner Village Taiwan in Taiwan in 2003
accounted for approximately 27% and 30% of the total cinema box office receipts in Taipei and the whole of
Taiwan, respectively.

Prior to Warner Village Taiwan’s entry into the Taiwan market, the film exhibition industry was relatively
underdeveloped compared to the United States, Australia and most parts of Western Europe. The Taiwan
market was dominated by independent theatres typically with non-stadium seating.

Warner Village Taiwan’s multiplex theatres range from 5 to 17 screens and have auditoriums ranging from
approximately 100 to 400 seats. Many of the theatres feature modern amenities such as wall-to-wall screens,
digital stereo surround-sound, multi-station concessions stands, computerized ticketing systems, plush stadium
seating with cup holders and retractable armrests, neon-enhanced interiors and exteriors. Warner Village
Taiwan has thus provided a new cinema-going experience for audiences in Taiwan.

Based on the audited accounts of Warner Village Taiwan as set out in Appendix II to this circular, the total
shareholders’ deficits of Warner Village Taiwan for the year ended 30 June 2004 stood at approximately
HK$206.39 million.

For the two years ended 30 June 2003 and 2004, respectively, Warner Village Taiwan recorded an audited net
loss (pre-tax and after tax) of approximately HK$61.83 million and an audited net income (pre-tax and after
tax) of approximately HK$7.70 million.

Following completion of the Acquisition, the Group is not required to make additional capital contributions to
Warner Village Taiwan.

Additional financial information relating to Warner Village Taiwan is set out in Appendix II to this circular.
INFORMATION ON THE SELLERS

Village Cinemas is principally engaged in the cinema exhibition industry in Australia, and together with its
strategic partners, currently operates over 1000 screens in Australia, Europe, Asia, New Zealand and South
America.

Warner Bros. is a fully integrated, broad-based entertainment company and a global leader in the creation,
production, distribution, licensing and marketing of all forms of entertainment and their related businesses,
ranging from feature films to television, home video/DVD, animation, comic books, interactive entertainment
and games, product and brand licensing, international cinemas and broadcasting.

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION
Earnings

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Group will adopt an equity method of accounting to consolidate
Warner Village Taiwan’s profits into the Group’s results if the Group acquires a 40% interest, or such profits
will be consolidated in the Group’s profit and loss account of the acquisition result in Warner Village Taiwan
becoming a subsidiary of the Company. The estimated negative goodwill arising from the Acquisition will be
recognized in the profit and loss accounts of the Group on a systematic basis over the remaining average
useful life of the depreciable assets of Warner Village Taiwan.

Net Tangible Asset Value

As at 30 June 2004, the audited consolidated net tangible assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$240.59 million, and the audited consolidated net tangible assets of the Group attributable to each share of
the Company was HK$0.27. On the basis that Golden Sky will be acquiring a 40% interest in Warner Village
Taiwan, based on the pro forma statement of the unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible asset value of
the Enlarged Group as set out on page 68 of Appendix III of this circular, the unaudited net tangible assets of
the Enlarged Group immediately after such acquisition would be increased by 34% to approximately HK$322.19
million. If Golden Sky decides to become a Step-in Purchaser under the terms of the Agreement and acquires a
100% interest in Warner Village Taiwan, based on the pro forma statement of the unaudited adjusted consolidated
net tangible asset value of the Enlarged Group as set out on page 67 of Appendix III of this circular, the
unaudited net tangible assets of the Enlarged Group immediately after such acquisition would be increased by
93% to approximately HK$464.47 million. The unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net tangible asset
of the Enlarged Group as at 30 June 2004 attributable to each share of the Company is HK$0.28 and HK$0.33
after the completion of the acquisition of a 40% and 100% interest in Warner Village Taiwan, respectively.

-
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PROSPECTS OF THE ENLARGED GROUP

The Enlarged Group will continue to be headquartered in Hong Kong, supported by a strong presence in
Singapore, Malaysia and Taiwan. With the signing of the Mainland China-Hong Kong Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement (“CEPA”), the Enlarged Group will be actively looking for new investment
opportunities in Mainland China. The Enlarged Group is currently developing a new cinema multiplex in
Shenzhen, which has recently commenced operations in December 2004.

The Chinese language entertainment industry remains one filled with great potential within Southeast Asia and
the PRC. The Directors believe the Enlarged Group will continue to leverage its strength and vision across
Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia and Taiwan to further consolidate its position as a major film distributor and
cinema operator in the overseas Chinese market and in Southeast Asia and to exploit other growing markets
where Chinese language films have a significant potential and a strong market following.

REASONS FOR THE ACQUISITION

The principal activities of the Group consist of worldwide film and video distribution, film exhibition in Hong
Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and the PRC, film production and the operation of a film processing business in
Hong Kong.

As one of the Group’s core businesses, subsidiaries and associated companies of the Group now operate a total
of 218 screens in 36 cinemas in Hong Kong, Singapore (accounting for 44% in total box office receipts in
Singapore for the year ended 30 June 2004) and Malaysia (accounting for 83% of total box office receipts in
Malaysia for the year ended 30 June 2004). The Acquisition will extend the cinema network of the Group to
Taiwan which is an important market for Chinese language movies as well as English language ones. The
addition of a substantial cinema operation in Taiwan would greatly enhance the Group’s overall position as a
major film distributor and cinema operator in Southeast Asia.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that the terms and conditions
of the Acquisition, including the provision of the Charge and the Guarantee, are fair and reasonable and are in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

SHAREHOLDERS’ APPROVAL

On the basis that Golden Sky will be purchasing a 40% interest in the Sale Shares and the Shareholders Loans,
and taking into account its obligations to make a corresponding advance of 40% of the amount payable to
secure the Lease Amendments (if required), the Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the Company,
and if Golden Sky elects to step-in and purchase the interests which the other Purchaser(s) has/have contracted
to purchase but which such other Purchaser(s) fail(s) to purchase at completion, may constitute a very substantial
acquisition, under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, completion of the Acquisition as contemplated under the
Agreement will be subject to, among other conditions, the approval of the Shareholders at the Special General
Meeting.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

The payment of a deposit by Golden Sky, which amounts to a separate obligation of Golden Sky in the
Agreement, constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

A notice convening the Special General Meeting at which ordinary resolutions will be proposed to the
Shareholders to consider, and if thought fit, to approve the Agreement and the Acquisition and all matters
relating thereto is set out on pages 84 and 85 of this circular.

A form of proxy for use at the Special General Meeting is also enclosed. Such form of proxy is also published
on the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk). Whether or not you are able to attend the Special
General Meeting, please complete the accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed
thereon and return it to the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong, Tengis Limited, at Ground Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong as soon as possible but in any
event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the Special General Meeting or any
adjournment thereof. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from attending
and voting in person at the meeting if they so wish.
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RECOMMENDATIONS

The Directors are of the opinion that the terms of the Agreement are fair and reasonable. Accordingly, the
resolutions to be proposed at the Special General Meeting as described in this circular is in the interests of the
Company and of the Shareholders as a whole, and the Directors recommend you to vote in favour of the
resolutions set out in the notice of the Special General Meeting contained in this circular.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the appendices to this circular.

Yours faithfully,
on behalf of the Board
Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond
Chairman



APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Set out below is a summary of the consolidated results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests of
the Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/

reclassified as appropriate.

Year ended 30 June

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
RESULTS HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TURNOVER 218,477 210,270 264,030 269,694 103,590
LOSS BEFORE TAX (900) (135,778) (82,489) (69,858) (77,912)
Tax (10,763) (5,611) (4,134) (4,622) (3,912)
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY
INTERESTS (11,663) (141,389) (86,623) (74,480) (81,824)
Minority interests - 6 5 5 -
NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS (11,663) (141,383) (86,618) (74,475) (81,824)
30 June
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
MINORITY INTERESTS
FIXED ASSETS 55,753 73,632 88,947 101,460 106,385
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 182,613 160,130 159,509 169,794 191,554
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB
MEMBERSHIPS 4,380 4,380 4,380 4,380 4,380
RENTAL DEPOSITS 11,869 13,134 13,179 14,206 14,386
LONG TERM INVESTMENT - - 2,297 8,097 40,000
TRADEMARKS 79,421 79,203 79,073 78,572 75,332
CURRENT ASSETS 89,173 107,199 177,015 213,794 295,056
TOTAL ASSETS 423,209 437,678 524,400 590,303 727,093
CURRENT LIABILITIES (97,813) (124,513) (109,053) (93,805) (140,469)
NON-CURRENT PORTION
OF FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (709) (1,174) (473) - -
PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE
PAYMENTS (3,800) (3,091) (2,478) (1,274) (1,114)
DEFERRED TAX (878) 931 (1,010) (1,058) (1,107)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (103,200) (129,709) (113,014) (96,137) (142,690)
MINORITY INTERESTS - (22) (28) (33) (38)
NET ASSETS 320,009 307,947 411,358 494,133 584,365
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APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP

Set out below are the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2004 together with
the relevant notes as extracted from the annual report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2004.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended 30 June 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

TURNOVER 5,6 218,477 210,270
Cost of sales (94,093) (109,271)
Gross profit 124,384 100,999
Interest income 14 403
Other revenue 12,506 7,102
Selling and distribution costs (106,229) (112,685)
General and administrative expenses (52,488) (54,262)
Other operating expenses, net (5,751) (36,227)
Impairment of film rights (3,543) (11,215)
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7 (31,107) (105,885)
Write-off of interests in associates - (75)
Impairment of a long term investment - (2,297)
Impairment of interest in an associate (1,413) (2,000)
Impairment of goodwill - (37,6006)
Finance costs 8 (363) (628)
Share of profits and losses of associates 31,983 12,713
LOSS BEFORE TAX (900) (135,778)
Tax 9 (10,763) (5,611)
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS (11,663) (141,389)
Minority interests - 6
NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 10 (11,663) (141,383)
LOSS PER SHARE 11

Basic (1.3 cents) (17.7 cents)

Diluted N/A N/A
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APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
30 June 2004

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets

Interests in associates
Investments in club memberships
Rental deposits

Trademarks

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Inventories

Film rights and films in progress
Accounts receivable
Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and other payables

Customer deposits
Current portion of finance lease payables

Provision for employee benefits
Tax payable

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current portion of finance lease payables
Provision for long service payments

Deferred tax

MINORITY INTERESTS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued share capital
Reserves
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Notes

12
14

15

16
17
18

19

20
21

20
21
22

23
25(a)

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
(Restated)

55,753 73,632
182,613 160,130
4,380 4,380
11,869 13,134
79,421 79,203
334,036 330,479
23,387 30,690
556 417
20,184 27,698
22,471 20,037
22,575 28,357
89,173 107,199
52,070 70,084
30,509 37,359
2,330 4,437
471 445
1,319 1,615
11,114 10,573
97,813 124,513
(8,640) (17,314)
325,396 313,165
709 1,174
3,800 3,091
878 931
5,387 5,196

- 22
320,009 307,947
88,429 80,089
231,580 227,858
320,009 307,947




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 30 June 2004

Reserves
Issued Share Capital Exchange
share  premium  redemption Capital Accumulated Surplus  Revaluation ~ fluctuation Total
capital account reserve reserve losses reserve Teserve reserve  reserves Total
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
At 1 July 2002:
As previously reported 80,089 565,577 145 (50,089) (157,682 480 7,864 (34,126) 332,169 412258
Prior year adjustment
- notes 4 and 22 - - - - - - (900) - (900) (900)
As restated 80,089 565,577 145 (50,089)  (157,682) 480 6,964 (34,126) 331,269 411,358
Exchange adjustments
on translation of:
- overseas subsidiaries - - - - - - - 116 116 116
- overseas associates - - - - - - - 296 296 296
Net gains and losses not
recognised in the
profit and loss account - - - - - - - 412 412 412
Impairment of goodwill - - - 37,606 - - - - 37,606 37,606
Deferred tax debited to equity - - - - - - (31) - (31) (31)
Net loss for the year - - - - (141383 - - - (141383)  (141383)
On liquidation of interests
in associates - - - - - - - (15) (15) (15)
At 30 June 2003 80,089 565,577 145 (12483)  (299,065) 480 6,933 (3,729) 221858 307,947
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APPENDIX I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2004

Reserves
Issued Share Capital Exchange
share  premium  redemption Capital Accumulated Surplus  Revaluation ~ fluctuation Total
capital account reserve eserve losses reserve Teserve reserve  reserves Total
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
At 1 July 2003:
As previously reported 80,089 565,577 145 (12483)  (299,065) 480 7,864 (3,729) 228789 308,878
Prior year adjustment
- notes 4 and 22 - - - - - - (931) - (931) (931)
As restated 80,089 565,577 145 (12483)  (299,065) 480 6,933 (3,729) 221858 307,947
[ssue of shares 8,340 15,012 - - - - - - 15,012 23,352
Share issue expenses - (924) - - - - - - (924) (924)
Exchange adjustments
on translation of:
- overseas subsidiaries - - - - - - - (654) (654) (654)
- overseas associates - - - - - - - 2,016 2,016 2,016
Net gains and losses not
recognised in the
profit and loss account - - - - - - - 1,362 1,362 1,362
Deferred tax credited to equity - - - - - - 3 - 3 3
Net loss for the year - - - - (11,603) - - - (11,603) (11,603)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation
reserve on disposal of
subsidiaries and associates - - - - - - - (113) (113) (113)
At 30 June 2004 88,429 579,665 145 (12483)  (310,728) 480 6,980 (32485) 231,580 320,009
Reserves retained by:
Company and subsidiaries 88,429 579,665 145 (12,483)  (281484) - 6,980 085 293514 381,943
Associates - - - - (29,44) 480 - (3,070)  (61934)  (61.934)
At 30 June 2004 88,429 579,665 145 (12483)  (310,728) 480 6,980 (32485) 231,580 320,009
Company and subsidiaries 80,089 565,577 145 (12483)  (226419) - 6,933 1375 335,128 45217
Associates - - - - (72,646) 480 - (35,104)  (107270)  (107,270)
At 30 June 2003 80,089 565,577 145 (12483)  (299,065) 480 6,933 (3,729) 221858 307,947
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APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 30 June 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Gain on disposal of associates
Write-off of interests in associates
Impairment of interest in an associate
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Exchange gains arising from translation of advances
to overseas associates in Asia and other monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at
the balance sheet date
Share of profits and losses of associates
Impairment of a long term investment
Impairment of film rights
Impairment of goodwill
Provision/(write-back of provision) for doubtful debts, net
Exchange adjustments

Operating loss before working capital changes

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Increase in inventories

Decrease in film rights and films in progress

Decrease in accounts receivable

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities and other payables
Decrease in customer deposits

Decrease in provision for employee benefits

Increase in provision for long service payments

Cash used in operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Interest element on finance lease rental payments
Overseas tax paid

Overseas tax refunded

Net cash outflow from operating activities

—15 -

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(900) (135,778)
(14) (403)

363 628
16,245 18,293
1,345 108
47 -

- 75

1,413 2,000
161 -
(2,352) (456)
(31,983) (12,713)
- 2,297

3,543 11,215

- 37,606
(2,927) 2,788
(636) 73
(15,789) (74,267)
8,007 24,732
(155) 99)
3,971 14,393
486 6,270
(17,624) 14,341
(6,950) 3,553
(2,107) (2,696)
(296) (585)
709 613
(29,748) (13,745)
14 403
(264) (548)
(99) (80)
(445) (41)
474 77
(30,068) (13,934)




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Net cash outflow from operating activities (30,068) (13,934)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets (1,694) (1,814)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 210 163
Investment in an associate - (205)
Proceeds from disposal of associates 1,632 1,199
Acquisition of subsidiaries 26(a) (101) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 26(b) 898 -
Repayment from associates, net 324 4,583
Rental deposits paid (647) (188)
Refund of rental deposits 1,912 233
Additions to trademarks (218) (130)
Net cash inflow from investing activities 2,316 3,841
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of new shares, net 22,428 -
Repayment of finance lease obligations (439) (484)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 21,989 (484)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (5,763) (10,577)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 28,357 38,874
Exchange adjustments (19 60
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 22,575 28,357
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 22,575 28,357
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APPENDIX I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

BALANCE SHEET
30 June 2004

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments
Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities and other payables

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued share capital
Reserves

- 17 -

2004 2003

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
13 320,314 307,979
135 135

20 1,593

155 1,728

460 829

(305) 899

320,009 308,878

23 88,429 80,089
25(b) 231,580 228,789
320,009 308,878




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 June 2004

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Group consist of worldwide
film and video distribution; film exhibition in Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and Mainland China; film and television
drama series production; and the operation of a film processing business in Hong Kong.

2. IMPACT OF AREVISED HONG KONG STATEMENT OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

The revised Hong Kong Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) 12 “Income taxes” is effective for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

SSAP 12 prescribes the accounting for income taxes payable or recoverable, arising from the taxable profit or loss for the
current period (current tax); and income taxes payable or recoverable in future periods, principally arising from taxable
and deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses (deferred tax).

The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP on these financial statements is described below:

Measurement and recognition:

. deferred tax assets and liabilities relating to the differences between capital allowances for tax purposes and
depreciation for financial reporting purposes and other taxable and deductible temporary differences are generally

fully provided for, whereas previously the deferred tax was recognised for timing differences only to the extent
that it was probable that the deferred tax asset or liability would crystallise in the foreseeable future; and

. a deferred tax liability has been recognised on the revaluation of the Company’s leasehold land and buildings.
Disclosures:
. the related note disclosures are now more extensive than previously required. These disclosures are presented in

notes 4, 9 and 22 to the financial statements and include a reconciliation between the accounting loss and the tax
expense for the year.

Further details of these changes and the prior year adjustment arising from them are included in notes 4, 9 and 22 to the
financial statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with SSAPs, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for the remeasurement of certain fixed assets, as further explained below.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 30 June 2004, together with the Group’s share of the results for the year and post-acquisition reserves of its
associates, as set out below. The results of the subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during the year are
consolidated/equity accounted for from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.
Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit and loss account to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has a long term interest of not less than 20 percent.
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated profit and loss

account and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
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APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Associates (Continued)

In prior years, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of its associates was calculated from the
latest available audited and management financial statements of the associates which were made up to 30 June, with the
exception of Golden Screen Cinemas Sdn. Bhd. (“GSC”) for which the latest available financial statements made up to 31
December were used, after making appropriate adjustments for significant transactions and events in the intervening
period to 30 June between GSC and the Group.

In the current financial year, the financial statements of GSC was made available up to 30 June 2004. Accordingly, to
align the financial statements period with that of the Group, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves
of GSC is based on GSC’s financial statements made up to 30 June 2004, and therefore, included its results for the 18

months to 30 June 2004. The Group’s share of the results after tax for the additional 6 months amounted to approximately
HK$2,495,000.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life. In the case of associates, any unamortised goodwill is included in the carrying
amount thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

SSAP 30 “Business combinations” was adopted as at 1 July 2001. Prior to that date, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
eliminated against consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the
transitional provision of SSAP 30 that permitted such goodwill to remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.
Goodwill on acquisitions subsequent to 1 July 2001 is treated according to the SSAP 30 goodwill accounting policy
above.

On disposal of subsidiaries or associates, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference to the net assets at the
date of disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill which remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as
appropriate. Any remaining attributable goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves at the time of
acquisition is written back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill remaining eliminated against consolidated reserves, is reviewed
annually and written down for impairment when it is considered necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was caused by a specific external event of an exceptional nature that
was not expected to recur, and subsequent external events have occurred which have reversed the effect of that event.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset, or
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in prior years may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Long term leasehold land over the unexpired terms of the leases
Buildings 4%

Leasehold improvements 10% — 33‘/3%

Machinery and equipment 10% — 25%

Furniture and fixtures 10% — 25%

Motor vehicles 20%

Air-conditioning systems 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. On disposal or retirement, the attributable
revaluation surplus not previously dealt with in retained profits or accumulated losses is transferred directly to retained
profits or accumulated losses.

Investments in club memberships

Investments in club memberships are stated at cost less any impairment losses. Cost includes fees and expenses directly
related to the acquisition of the club memberships.

Trademarks
Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are not amortised.
Long term investments

Long term investments in unlisted equity securities, which are intended to be held on a continuing basis, and which are
held for identified long term purposes documented at the time of acquisition or change of purpose and are clearly
identifiable for the documented purpose, are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an individual investment basis.

When impairments in values have occurred, the carrying amounts of the securities are reduced to their fair values, as
estimated by the directors, and the amounts of the impairments are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise.

When the circumstances and events that led to the impairment cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new
circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the appreciation in fair value is credited to the profit and
loss account, on an individual investment basis, to the extent of the amount previously charged.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable, which generally have credit terms of one to three months, are recognised and carried at the original
invoiced amount. An estimate for doubtful debts is made and deducted when collection of the full amount is no longer
probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow-
moving items. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion,
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices, less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Film rights and amortisation
(i) Film rights

Film rights represent films and television drama series and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged to the profit and loss account based on the proportion of actual income earned during the
year to the total estimated income from the sale of film rights. Where there is an impairment in value, the
unamortised balance is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

(ii) Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any impairment losses. Costs include all direct costs associated with the
production of films or television drama series. Impairment losses are made for costs which are in excess of the
expected future revenue generated by these films or television drama series. Costs are transferred to film rights
upon completion.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or
corporate entities.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, or in equity if it
relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:

. except where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax assets and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised:

. except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred

tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable rates of
exchange ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries and the Group’s share of net assets of overseas
associates expressed in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the net investment method. The
profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries and associates are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year, and their balance sheets are translated into Hong Kong dollars as the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting translation differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included in fixed assets and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the profit and loss account on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to
the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required number of years of service to the Group in order to be
eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Employee Ordinance”) in the event
of the termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long service payments expected to be made. The provision is
based on the best estimate of the probable future payments which have been earned by the employees from their service to
the Group to the balance sheet date.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the Scheme. Contributions to the Scheme
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions are fully and immediately
vested with the employees when contributed to the Scheme. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are members of the state-
sponsored retirement scheme (the “State Scheme”) operated by the government of the PRC. Contributions to the state
scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account as
they became payable in accordance with the rules of the State Scheme.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The financial impact of share options granted under the share
option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until such time as the options are exercised,
and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss account or balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and
the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share
premium account. Options which are cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when

acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is

probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Provisions (Continued)
When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet
date of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present

value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the profit and loss account.

Provisions for long service payments are made based on relevant labour laws and regulations governing retirement
payments and are reviewed by the directors on an annual basis and adjusted where applicable.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) film royalties income, theatre advertising income and video distribution income, on an accrual basis;

(b) film distribution commission income, film developing and printing service income, advertising agency fee income,
production control fee income, and film sourcing and consultancy service income, on completion of the services;

(c) gross box office takings, when the services have been rendered to the buyers;

(d) income from confectionery sales and compact disc sales, at the point of sales when the confectionery and compact
discs are given to the customers;

(e) rental income, in the period in which the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease terms;

(f) interest, on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective rate of interest
applicable; and

(2) dividends, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.
4. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

In the current year, the revised SSAP 12 “Income taxes” became effective as detailed in note 2 to the financial statements.
The resulting change in accounting policy relating to the recognition of deferred tax liability that arises from the revaluation
of a leasehold land and building has been made retrospectively and, accordingly, the comparative balances for the year
ended 30 June 2003 have been restated. The effect of this change is an increase in the Group’s net deferred tax liability as
at 30 June 2004 and 2003 by HK$878,000 and HK$931,000, respectively, of which the corresponding debits were directly
charged against the revaluation reserve of the same amount. As a consequence, the revaluation reserves at 1 July 2003 and
2002 have been decreased by HK$931,000 and HK$900,000, respectively.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed separately, according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the film and video distribution segment engages in worldwide distribution of films and audio visual products
related to films and television programmes;

(b) the film exhibition segment engages in film exhibition in Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and Mainland China;

(c) the film and television drama series production segment engages in production controller and film producer
services; and

(d) the others segment comprises film processing business and music production business, which provide film
processing services and produce soundtracks and sell soundtrack albums.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues and results are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at
the then prevailing market prices.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, results and certain asset, liability and expenditure information for the
Group’s business segments.

Film and
Film and television drama
video distribution Film exhibition series production Others Eliminations Consolidated

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$000 HKS000 HKS000

Segment revenue:
Sales to external

customers 51,25 77,993 146,271 116,602 200 910 20,781 14,765 - - 218477 210,270
Inter-segment sales 1,762 2,024 - - - - 294 268 (2,056)  (2,292) - -
Other revenue 5,748 3,806 2470 2,308 1,401 1,505 410 319 (1,305)  (1,395) 8,724 6,543
Total 58,735 830823 148741 118,910 1,601 2415 21485 15352 (3,361)  (3,687) 227,201 216,813

Segment results 126 (8,406) (24394) (64,025)  (9,677) (24497) 2,585 574 - 722 (31,360) (95,632)

Interest income and
unallocated gains 3,796 962
Impairment of film rights (3,543 )  (11,215) - - - - - - - - (3,543)  (11,215)

Loss from operating

activities (31,107) (105,885)
Write-off of interests

in associates - (75) - - - - - - - - - (75)
Impairment of a long

term investment - (2,297)
Impairment of interest

in an associate - - (L413)  (2,000) - - - - - - (1413)  (2,000)
Impairment of goodwill - - - - - (37,606) - - - - - (37,606)
Finance costs (363) (628)
Share of profits and

losses of associates 2372 (833) 29,611 13,546 - - - - - - 31,983 12,713
Loss before tax (900) (135,778)
Tax (10,763)  (5,611)

Loss before minority
interests (11,663) (141,389)

Minority interests -

=N

Net loss from ordinary
activities attributable
to shareholders (11,663)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business segments (Continued)

Group
Film and
Film and television drama
video distribution Film exhibition series production Others Eliminations Consolidated

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
(Restated)
Segment assets 58201 76,495 64,698 92,268 3915 20,007 11,594 10,674 - (15390) 138408 184,054
Interests in associates 405 737 182,208 159,393 - - - - - - 182,613 160,130
Trademarks 79,421 79,203
Unallocated assets 22,767 14,291
Total assets 423209 437,678
Segment liabilities 25,041 37,070 23841 29,063 1,206 4,002 4,080 6,485 - (15426) 54,168 61,194
Unallocated liabilities 49,032 68,515
Total liabilities 103,200 129,709

Other segment information:
Depreciation 529 628 12,976 14,363 454 802 693 680 - - 14,652 16,473
Unallocated amounts 1,593 1,820
16,245 18,293
Amortisation of film rights 14,093 30,919 - - - - - - - - 14,093 30,919

Provision/(write-back of

provision) for doubtful
debts, net (3.282) 2,559 151 339 - - 204 (110) - - (2927) 2788
Capital expenditure 68 202 1,314 1,183 - - 133 - - - 1,515 1,385
Unallocated amounts 179 1,881
1,694 3,206

Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue and certain asset and expenditure information for the Group’s geographical

segments.
Group
Mainland Elsewhere
Hong Kong China in Asia Others Eliminations Consolidated
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Segment revenue:
Sales to external
customers 201,748 174917 3697 17.555 3407 15052 11,681 5,038 (2.056)  (2.292) 218477 210.270
Other segment information:
Segment assets 155,104 167971 4663 25363 1,383 4308 25 703 - - 161175 198,345
Interests in associates 182,613 160,130
Trademarks 79,421 79,203
423209 437,678
Capital expenditure 1,607 3,037 68 213 19 16 - - - - 3,260
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6. TURNOVER
Turnover represents proceeds from the sale of film, video and television rights, motion picture distribution and theatre
operation, advertising agency fees earned, invoiced value of film developing and printing services rendered, production
control fees earned, service fees earned for film sourcing and consultancy, and sale of audio visual products.

7. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Cost of inventories sold 9,410 6,345
Cost of services provided 70,590 72,007
Amortisation of film rights 14,093 30,919
Auditors’ remuneration 1,348 1,486
Depreciation 16,245 18,293
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,345 108
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 161 -
Operating lease rental payments in respect of land and buildings
Minimum lease payments 37,002 39,165
Contingent rents 1,424 1,811
38,426 40,976
Staff costs, excluding directors’ remuneration (see note 28)
Wages, salaries and staff welfares * 45,763 47,644
Pension contributions 1,557 1,632
47,320 49,276
Provisions for long service payments 709 613
Exchange gains arising from translation of advances
to overseas associates in Asia and other monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
as at the balance sheet date (2,352) (456)
Provision/(write-back of provision) for doubtful debts, net (2,927) 2,788
Provision for deposits paid for equipment - 20,731
Exchange gains, net (1,109) 93)
Rental income, net (365) (365)
Interest income on bank deposits (14) (263)
Gain on disposal of associates 47) -
Write-off of aged liabilities (12,044) -
Interest income from related parties — (140)

* Balance also included the amount of “Provision for long service payments” disclosed above.

The cost of services provided includes approximately HK$2,974,000 (2003: HK$3,308,000) relating to staff costs which
is also included in the amount disclosed above.

The amortisation of film rights for the year is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated profit and loss
account.

The write-off of aged liabilities of approximately HK$6,899,000, HK$3,598,000, HK$575,000 and HK$972,000 are
included in “Cost of Sales”, “Other revenue”, “General and administrative expenses” and “Other operating expenses”,
respectively, on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

8. FINANCE COSTS

2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on accounts payable 264 548
Interest on finance leases 99 80
363 628
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10.

11.

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, based on country legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Group:
Hong Kong 642 355
Elsewhere (130) 189
Deferred (note 22) - (110)
512 434
Associates:
Charge for the year 2,893 -
Deferred 7,358 5,177
10,251 5,177
Total tax charge for the year 10,763 5,611

At the date of approval of the financial statements, a subsidiary of the Group has disputes with the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (“HKIRD”) on the non-taxable claim of certain non-Hong Kong sourced income for the years of
assessment 1995/1996 and 1996/1997. The subsidiary is pursuing its objection of the HKIRD’s assessments and the
directors consider that sufficient tax provision has been made in this regard.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax using the statutory rates ranging from 17.5% to 33% for
the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries and associates are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective
tax rates, are as follows:

Group

2004 2003

HK$°000 HK$°000

Loss before tax (900) (135,778)
Tax at statutory rates (157) (23,761)
Higher tax rate for specific provinces or local authority 1,612 (1,488)
Effect on opening deferred tax of decrease in tax rates (951) -
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods (2,159) (1,282)
Income not subject to tax (3,103) (1,902)
Expenses not deductible for tax 6,555 15,841
Temporary differences not recognised 1,671 576
Tax losses not recognised 9,522 19,472
Tax losses from previous periods utilised (2,227) (1,845)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate 10,763 5,611

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the Company is
HK$11,297,000 (2003: HK$80,194,000).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for the
year of HK$11,663,000 (2003: HK$141,383,000) and the weighted average of 877,223,566 shares (2003: 800,887,500
shares) in issue during the year.

No disclosure of diluted loss per share for both current year and prior year is shown as the exercise price of the

Company’s outstanding share options was higher than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during
the year and thus the share options have no diluting effect.
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12. FIXED ASSETS

Group
Leasehold Leasehold Machinery Furniture Air-
land and improve- and and Motor conditioning
buildings ments equipment fixtures vehicles systems Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost or valuation:

At beginning of year 9,300 69,203 29,758 21,490 3,373 588 133,712
Additions - 468 1,085 141 - - 1,694
Disposals - (815) (1,206) (788) (357) - (3,166)
Disposal of subsidiaries - (165) (294) (2,607) - - (3,066)
Exchange adjustments - - 9 - 39 - 48
At 30 June 2004 9,300 68,691 29,352 18,236 3,055 588 129,222

Accumulated depreciation:

At beginning of year 3,007 30,229 15,344 10,006 925 569 60,080
Provided during the year 358 8,713 3,865 2,666 632 11 16,245
Disposals - (225) (999) (300) (87) - (1,611)
Disposal of subsidiaries - (63) (125) (1,104) - - (1,292)
Exchange adjustments - - 21 - 26 - 47
At 30 June 2004 3,365 38,654 18,106 11,268 1,496 580 73,469
Net book value:
At 30 June 2004 5,935 30,037 11,246 6,968 1,559 8 55,753
At 30 June 2003 6,293 38,974 14,414 11,484 2,448 19 73,632
Analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost - 68,691 29,352 18,236 3,055 588 119,922
At valuation 9,300 - - - - - 9,300
9.300 68.691 29.352 18.236 3.055 588 129,222

The leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and are held under long term leases.

The net book value of the Group’s fixed assets held under finance leases included in the total amount of machinery and
equipment and motor vehicles at 30 June 2004, amounted to HK$48,000 (2003: HK$70,000) and HK$1,361,000 (2003:
HK$1,911,000), respectively.

The long term leasehold land and buildings were revalued on 30 September 1994 by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, C.Y. Leung & Company Limited, at HK$9,300,000 at open market value assuming sale with vacant
possession. The surplus arising from the revaluation was credited to the revaluation reserve account. The Group has
adopted the transitional provision, as permitted under paragraph 80 of SSAP 17 issued in 1995 and revised in 2001, of not
making further regular valuations on its revalued assets.

Had the Group’s land and buildings been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, they
would have been included in the financial statements at approximately HK$668,000 (2003: HK$707,000).

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Unlisted shares, at cost 167,647 167,647
Due from subsidiaries 741,247 717,718
908,894 885,365
Provision for impairment (588,580) (577,386)
320,314 307,979

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and not expected to be repaid within the next twelve months.
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13.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

Cine Art Laboratory
Limited

City Entertainment
Corporation
Limited

Conneway Films
Company Limited

Gala Film Distribution
Limited

Golden Harvest Cinemas
Holding Limited

Golden Harvest
Entertainment
Company Limited

Golden Harvest
Entertainment
International Limited

Golden Harvest Films
Distribution Holding Limited

Golden Harvest Film
Productions Limited

Golden Harvest
(Marks) Limited

Golden Harvest
Multiplex (Pte) Limited

Golden Movies
International Limited

Golden Screen Limited

Golden Touch
Licencing B.V.

Place of

incorporation
and principal

operations

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin

Islands

Hong Kong

British Virgin

Islands

British Virgin

Islands

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands

Singapore

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

Netherlands

Issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

Ordinary

HK$2,500
Deferred*

HK$997,500

Ordinary
HK$2

Ordinary
HK$31,610,000

Ordinary
HK$10,000
Deferred*

HK$10,000

Ordinary
US$1

Ordinary
HK$100
Deferred*

HK$114,000,000
Ordinary
US$1,000
Ordinary

US$1

Ordinary
HK$100,000

Ordinary
USS$1

Ordinary
S$2

Ordinary
US$1

Ordinary
HK$8,750,000

Ordinary
EURI8,151.21

~20_

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Group

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal
activities

Film
developing
and printing

Theatre
operation

Theatre
operation

Distribution
of motion
pictures

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Provision of
production
controller and
film producer
services

Holding of
trademarks

Investment
holding

Sale of film
rights and
distribution
of motion
pictures

Investment
holding

Distribution
of motion
pictures
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13.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of Percentage

incorporation Issued and of equity
and principal fully paid share/ attributable Principal
Name operations registered capital to the Group activities
Happy Way Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Distribution
HK$10,000 of audio visual
products related
to films and
programmes
Kotewall Limited British Virgin Ordinary 100 Sale of film
Islands US$1 rights and
distribution
of motion
pictures
Panasia Films Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Distribution
HK$2,600,000 of motion
pictures and
acting as
an advertising
agent
Real Merry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Theatre
HK$16,831,002 operation
Shanghai Golden Harvest PRC Registered 90 Distribution
Media Management US$500,000 of motion
Company Limited** pictures
Splendid Ventures Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Theatre
HK$2 operation
SML (Hong Kong) Limited Samoa Ordinary 100 Distribution
US$1 of motion
pictures
United Harvest Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Provision of
HK$2 finance to
group
companies

Except for Golden Harvest Entertainment International Limited, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

* For Golden Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, the deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and carry
the right to receive one half of the surplus on a return of capital exceeding HK$1,000,000,000,000,000. Apart
from the above, all other deferred shares carry rights to dividends for any given financial year of the respective
companies when the net profit available for distribution exceeds HK$1,000,000,000. They also carry rights to
receive one half of the surplus on a return of capital of the respective companies exceeding HK$500,000,000,000.
None of the deferred shares carry any rights to vote at general meetings.

ok Shanghai Golden Harvest Media Management Company Limited is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise
under the PRC Law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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14.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Group
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Share of net assets other than goodwill 57,581 12,163
Due from associates 126,445 149,967
184,026 162,130
Provision for impairment (1,413) (2,000)
182,613 160,130

All balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free and not expected to be repaid within the next twelve months.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition accumulated reserves of associates as at 30 June 2004 amounted to accumulated
losses of HK$29,244,000 (2003: HK$72,646,000). During the year, the Group acquired additional interests in certain
associates which became subsidiaries of the Group thereafter and put certain associates under liquidation. The related
accumulated losses in relation to those former associates that became subsidiaries of the Group and those associates under
liquidation in current year amounted to HK$16,402,000 and HK$5,268,000, respectively.

Included in the above are the results of Golden Screen Cinemas Sdn. Bhd. (“GSC”), Golden Village Multiplex Pte
Limited (“GVM”) and Tanjong Golden Village Sdn. Bhd. (“TGV”) which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to
the Group’s financial results. Details of the financial position as at 30 June 2004 and the results for the year then ended of
the respective associates except for GSC (details please refer to note 3 to the financial statements) are as follows:

GSC
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Total assets 205,345 191,487
Total liabilities 122,989 127,801
Turnover 285,331 151,774
Profit before tax 28,455 5,657
Profit after tax attributable to the Group 8.575 2.275
GVM
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Total assets 357,116 336,019
Total liabilities 253,432 259,270
Turnover 292,029 271,750
Profit before tax 32,599 24,349
Profit after tax attributable to the Group 12,249 8,544
TGV
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Total assets 124,627 110,393
Total liabilities 106,328 103,515
Turnover 152,219 127,438
Profit before tax 20,488 14,938
Profit after tax attributable to the Group 3,633 2,864
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14.

15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Name

Dartina Development
Limited

Global Entertainment and
Management Systems
Sdn. Bhd.

Golden Access Pte Limited

Golden Screen Cinemas
Sdn. Bhd.

Golden UIP Film
Distributors Limited

Golden Village
Entertainment
(Singapore) Pte Limited

Golden Village Pictures
Pte Limited
Golden Village Holdings

Pte Limited

Golden Village Multiplex
Pte Limited

Keen Fortune Production
Limited

Rich Will Limited

Tanjong Golden Village
Sdn. Bhd.

Business
structure

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate

Place of
incorporation
and principal

operations
Hong Kong

Malaysia

Singapore

Malaysia

Hong Kong

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

Malaysia

Class of
shares held

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Percentage of
paid-up share

capital held
by the Group

50

33.33

50

40.22

50

50

50

50

50

50

50

33.33

Principal
activities

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Computer
programming

Distribution
of motion
pictures and
theatre
operation

Distribution
of motion
pictures

Investment
holding

Distribution
of motion
Pictures

Investment
holding

Theatre
operation

Distribution
of motion
pictures

Theatre
operation

Theatre
operation

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

TRADEMARKS

The trademarks represent the perpetual licence for the use of the brandname “Golden Harvest” which takes the form of

sign, symbol, name, logo, design or any combination thereof.

The trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are not amortised. Additions during the year represent
design fees and professional fees and registration fees incurred on the registration of the trademarks overseas.
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15. TRADEMARKS (Continued)

In accordance with the requirements of SSAP 29, the cost of the Group’s trademarks should be amortised over the best
estimate of their useful lives. SSAP 29 also states that there is a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an
intangible asset will not exceed 20 years from the date when the asset is available for use. In the opinion of the directors,
to follow the requirements of SSAP 29 would give a misleading view of the results of the Group and its loss per share for
the following reasons:

(i) The trademarks, which were acquired by the Group in 2000, have been in use for a long time and will continue to
be used for the long term. The valuation of the Group’s trademarks performed by Adonis Appraisal Limited, an
independent professional appraiser, has confirmed that the market value of the trademarks exceeded the carrying
value as at 30 June 2004. In the opinion of the directors, there has been no material change in the valuation since
30 June 2004; and

(i) The Group has incurred and intends to continue to incur significant advertising and promotion expenses, which
are charged to profit and loss account when incurred, to maintain and increase the market value of its trademarks.

As a result, the Group has decided not to follow the requirements of SSAP 29 and to continue to adopt the accounting
policy to state trademarks at cost less any impairment losses. The Group intends to confirm the value of its trademarks by
independent professional valuation periodically.

16. INVENTORIES

Group
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Raw materials 426 266
Chemicals 39 38
Machinery parts 91 113
556 417

17. FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

As at 30 June 2004, the balance of film rights and films in progress included an impairment loss of HK$3,543,000 (2003:
HK$11,215,000), which was charged to the profit and loss account for the year. The impairment loss was determined by
management with reference to the net realisable values of film rights and films in progress as at the balance sheet date in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Group usually grants credit periods ranging from one to three months. The age analysis of the accounts receivable,
net of provision at 30 June, is as follows:

Group
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current to 3 months 19,929 14,345
4 to 6 months 1,084 656
7 to 12 months 528 2,873
Over 1 year 930 2,163
22,471 20,037

The accounts receivable of the Group included trading balances due from Golden Harvest Private Group companies
totalling HK$20,000 (2003: HK$123,000). All of the balances with the Golden Harvest Private Group companies are
unsecured, repayable in accordance with normal trading terms and interest-free.

The Golden Harvest Private Group represents the private companies in the Golden Harvest Group, a group of companies
controlled by Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond, a director of the Company, which were not included in the Group reorganisation
in November 1994.

The accounts receivable of the Group also included amounts due from related companies, GH Pictures (China) Limited,
GH Media Management Pte Limited and Best Creation International Limited of approximately HK$36,000 (2003:
HK$56,000), Nil (2003: HK$198,000) and HK$269,000 (2003: HK$299,000), respectively. These amounts are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond, Phoon Chiong Kit, Chu Siu Tsun, Stephen
and Chan Sik Hong, David, who are directors of the Company, are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of certain
of these related companies.
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19.

20.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The age analysis of trade creditors included in accounts payable at 30 June is as follows:

Group
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current to 3 months 27,437 24,663
4 to 6 months 534 4,517
7 to 12 months 920 9,154
Over 1 year 23,179 31,750
52,070 70,084

The accounts payable of the Group included trading balances due to Golden Harvest Private Group companies totalling
HK$40,000 (2003: HK$11,000). The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance with normal
trading terms.

The accounts payable of the Group also included amounts due to GH Pictures (China) Limited and Harvest Crown
Limited of HK$20,421,000 (2003: HK$39,464,000) and HK$390,000 (2003: HK$284,000), respectively. The amounts are
unsecured and have no fixed repayment terms. Except for an amount of HK$20,065,000 due to GH Pictures (China)
Limited which bears interest at Hong Kong dollars short term time deposits rate plus 1% per annum, the other balances
are interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond, Phoon Chiong Kit and Chu Siu Tsun,
Stephen, who are directors of the Company, are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of certain of these related
companies.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES
At 30 June 2004, the total future minimum lease payments under finance leases and their present values, were as follows:
Group

Present value of Present value of
Minimum lease Minimum lease minimum lease minimum lease

payments payments payments payments
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Amounts payable:
Within one year 548 544 470 445
In the second year 456 544 412 467
In the third to fifth years,
inclusive 308 761 298 707
Total minimum
finance lease payments 1,312 1,849 1,180 1,619
Future finance charges (132) (230)
Total net finance lease payables 1,180 1,619
Portion classified as current
liabilities (471) (445)
Non-current portion 709 1,174
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21.

22.

PROVISIONS
Group
Long Other
service employee
payments benefits Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At beginning of year 3,091 1,615 4,706
Additional provision/(write-back) 709 (296) 413
At 30 June 2004 3,800 1,319 5,119
Portion classified as current liabilities - (1,319) (1,319)
Non-current portion 3,800 - 3,800

Under the relevant labour laws and regulations governing retirement payments, the Company’s directors have estimated
and provided for the amount of provisions for long service payments. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate.

The Group provides for the unused holiday leave carried forward by the Group’s employees. The provision is based on the
best estimate of the probable future costs of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward
at the balance sheet date.

DEFERRED TAX

The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year is as follows:

Revaluation of

Accelerated leasehold land
tax depreciation and buildings Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

At beginning of year:
As previously reported

Prior year adjustment: - 110 - 110 - 110
SSAP 12 — restatement of

deferred tax - - 931 900 931 900
As restated - 110 931 1,010 931 1,010

Deferred tax credited to the

profit and loss account

during the year - (110) - (110)
Deferred tax (credited)/debited

to equity during the year

(2003: including a debit of

HK$84,000 due to the effect

of a change in tax rates) - - (53) 31 (53) 31

(110)

At 30 June — — 878 931 878 931

The Group has tax losses arising in and outside Hong Kong of approximately HK$333,843,000 and HK$50,774,000
(2003: HK$300,031,000 and HK$47,949,000, respectively), respectively, that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose, except for the balances of approximately
HK$9,316,000 and HK$3,091,000 (2003: HK$6,530,000 and HK$2,070,000) which can be only carried forward for five
years under the relevant legislation, interpretations and practices in PRC and Taiwan, respectively. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time.

At 30 June 2004, there is no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2003: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as the Group has no liability to
additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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22. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

SSAP 12 (Revised) was adopted during the year as further explained in note 2 to the financial statements. This change in
accounting policy has resulted in an increase in the Group’s deferred tax liability as at 30 June 2004 and 2003 by
HK$878,000 and HK$931,000, respectively, of which the corresponding debits were directly charged against the revaluation
reserve of the same amount. As a consequence, the consolidated reserves at 1 July 2003 and 2002 decreased by HK$931,000
and HK$900,000, respectively, as detailed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

23. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares
Company
2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$°000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 (2003: 1,300,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 130,000
Issued and fully paid:
884,287,500 (2003: 800,887,500)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 88,429 80,089
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows:
(a) On 11 July 2003, the Company entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with FB Gemini

Capital Limited (“FB Gemini”), an independent placing agent. Pursuant to the Placing Agreement, FB Gemini
agreed to procure third party individuals and institutional investors to subscribe for 83,400,000 new shares of the
Company at a price of HK$0.28 per share. 83,400,000 new shares were issued on 1 August 2003 and the net
proceeds of HK$22.4 million were used to provide additional working capital of the Group.

(b) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 26 November 2003, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$130,000,000 to HK$200,000,000 by the creation of 700,000,000 additional shares of HK$0.10
each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing share capital of the Company.

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the above movements in the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital is as follows:

Number of Issued share Share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 July 2002,

30 June 2003 and
1 July 2003 800,887,500 80,089 565,577 645,666
Issue of shares 83,400,000 8,340 15,012 23,352
Share issue expenses - - (924) (924)
At 30 June 2004 884.287.500 88.429 579.665 668.094

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 14 July 2004, the Company entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Company issued and allotted 155,000,000 ordinary shares at a
price of HK$0.25 per share to Typhoon Music (PRC) Limited (“Typhoon Music”), an independent third party, on 11
August 2004. The proceeds from the allotment of shares, after deduction of related expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$36.4 million. The Company intends to apply the net proceeds for general working capital purposes, including paying
down certain indebtedness of the Group, as capital contribution towards a joint venture company established by the
Company, and for any future investment opportunities in the film financing, film distribution and/or cinema operation
business as an when these opportunities arise.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in note 24 to the financial statements.
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24.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose for providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of the Group, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group and customers of the Group. The Scheme became effective on 31 October 2001 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon exercise of all share options granted and to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 28 November 2001. This limit can be refreshed by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). As at 30 June 2004, the aggregate number of shares of the
Company issuable under share options granted under the Scheme and another share option scheme of the Company (the
“Terminated Scheme”, which was terminated on 28 November 2001) was 28,100,000, of which 23,500,000 shares of the
Company remain issuable under options granted under the Scheme (which represented approximately 2.7% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at 30 June 2004), and 4,600,000 shares of the Company remain issuable under options granted on 25
July 2000 under the Terminated Scheme of the Company (which represented approximately 0.5% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at 30 June 2004). The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to each eligible
participant under the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding independent non-
executive director who is the grantee of the option). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted within 30 days inclusive of, and from the day of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, which may not exceed 10 years commencing on such date on or after the date of grant as the directors of
the Company may determine in granting the share options and ending on such date as the directors of the Company may
determine in granting the share options (which in any event must be prior to the close of business on 30 October 2011).
Save as determined by the directors of the Company and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant share option,
there is no general requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date
of offer of grant of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange’s closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 30 June 2004, the Company had the following outstanding share options granted to directors and employees of the

Company:

Name or
category of
participant

Directors

Phoon Chiong Kit

Chu Siu Tsun, Stephen

Chan Sik Hong, David

Other employees

In aggregate

Notes:

Date of
grant of
share
options
251712000
311072001

3171072001

317102001

317102001

Exercise
price
HKS

0.78

0.62

0.62

0.62

0.62

Exercise
options

25712000
to 24/7/2010

3171072001
to 30/10/2011

31/10/2001
to 30/10/2011

31/10/2001
to 30/10/2011

3171072001
to 30/10/2011

Number of share options

Outstanding Outstanding
options at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled options at
1July  during the  during the  during the  during the 30 June
2003 year year year year 2004
4,600,000 - - - - 4,600,000
Note (a)
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Note (b)
8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000
Note (b)
5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
Note (b)
1,500,000 - - - (1,000,000) 500,000
Note (b)
29,100,000 - - - (1,000,000) 28,100,000

(a) 50%, 25% and 25% of the share options granted are exercisable during the periods from 25 July 2000 to 24 July
2010, 25 July 2001 to 24 July 2010 and 25 July 2002 to 24 July 2010, respectively.

(b) 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options granted are exercisable during the periods from 31 October 2001 to 30
October 2011, 1 August 2002 to 30 October 2011 and 1 August 2003 to 30 October 2011, respectively.

No share options were granted or exercised during the year.
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25. RESERVES
(a) Group

The surplus reserve represents an amount transferred from retained profits in accordance with statutory requirements
and the articles of association of an associate in Taiwan. The surplus reserve may only be applied to make up any
losses and for the capitalisation by the way of fully paid bonus issues of the shares of the associate in Taiwan.

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The amounts of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates prior to 1 July 2001, are as follows:

Goodwill
eliminated against
capital reserve
HK$’000

Cost:
At beginning of year and at 30 June 2004 154,313

Accumulated impairment:
At beginning of year 141,830
Impairment provided during the year -

At 30 June 2004 141,830
Net amount:

At 30 June 2004 12,483

At 30 June 2003 12,483

(b) Company

Share Capital

premium redemption Contributed Accumulated
account reserve surplus losses Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 July 2002 565,577 145 191,644 (448,383) 308,983
Net loss for the year - - - (80,194) (80,194)

At 30 June 2003 and

1 July 2003 565,577 145 191,644 (528,577) 228,789
Issue of shares 15,012 - - - 15,012
Share issue expenses (924) - - - (924)
Net loss for the year - - - (11,297) (11,297)
At 30 June 2004 579,665 145 191,644 (539,874) 231,580

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued, in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries, and the aggregate net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to shareholders under certain conditions.
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26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$°000
Net assets acquired:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 413 -
Cash and cash equivalents 400 -
Accrued liabilities and other payables (100) -
Amounts due from related companies 289 -
1,002 —
Satisfied by:
Cash 501 -
Reclassification to interests in subsidiaries
from interests in associates 501 -
1,002 —

An analysis of the net cashflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries is as
follows:

2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash consideration (501) -

Cash and cash equivalents 400 -
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries (101) —

The subsidiaries acquired during the year made no significant contribution to the Group in respect of turnover and
net loss attributable to shareholders for the year.

Disposal of subsidiaries

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets disposed of:
Fixed assets 1,774 -
Inventories 16 -
Accounts receivable 7 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 28 -
Cash and cash equivalents 376 -
Accounts payable (390) -
Minority interests (22) -
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserves (35) -
1,754 -
Loss on disposal (161) -
1,593 —

Satisfied by:

Cash 1,274 -
Due from an associate 319 -
1,593 —
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26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

An analysis of the net cashflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as
follows:

2004 2003

HK$°000 HK$°000

Cash consideration 1,274 -

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (376) -
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries 898 —

The results of the subsidiaries disposed of in the year ended 30 June 2004 had no significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated turnover or loss after tax for the year.

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the Group disposed of its equity interest in certain of its associates resulting in a net gain of
HK$47,000. Pursuant to the disposal, certain advances to these associates of approximately HK$16,504,000 were
waived by the Group. Further, amounts due from certain associates of HK$5,202,000 which were under liquidation
were also waived by the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group also had the following transactions with related parties.

The directors consider that all of these transactions were carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the

Group.
(a)

Transactions with the Golden Harvest Private Group

During the year, the Group had transactions to which members of the Golden Harvest Private Group were parties.
The significant transactions are summarised below:

Group
2004 2003
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000

Film distribution commission income (i) 62 29

Film developing and printing services income (ii) 19 —

Notes:

(i) The Group acted as the distributor of the films produced by certain companies within the Golden Harvest

Private Group and commission income was charged according to prices and conditions similar to those
offered to other customers of the Group.
Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond (“Mr. Chow”), a director and a substantial shareholder of the Company
during the year, is interested, directly or indirectly, in the above transactions as a director and/or beneficial
shareholder of the members of the Golden Harvest Private Group of which the commission income was
derived from.

(i) The service income related to the provision of film developing and printing services to certain companies

within the Golden Harvest Private Group and was charged according to prices and conditions similar to
those offered to other customers of the Group.

The above related party transactions with the members of the Golden Harvest Private Group also constituted
connected transaction, as defined in the Listing Rules.

The directors have reviewed and confirmed that these connected transactions were conducted in the ordinary
course of the business of the Group and on terms no less favourable than those offered to unrelated third parties.
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Transactions with other related parties

Apart from the above, during the year, the Group also had the following material transactions with other related
parties:

Group
2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Film distribution commission income from
related companies (i), (ii) 445 2,185
Rental income from a related company (i), (iii) 365 365
Interest expense to a related company (i), (iv) 264 548
Consultancy fee paid to a related company (i), (v) 881 749
Film royalty income from associates (i), (vi) 367 1,769
Management fee income from associates (i), (vii) 1,027 2,309
Film distribution commission income from
an associate (i), (viii) 331 2,171
Film sourcing service fee paid to an associate (i), (ix) 132 132
Accounting service fee paid to an associate (i), (x) 85 82
Screen rental paid to an associate (i), (xi) 40 20
Ticketing system development costs paid to
an associate (i), (xii) 518 519
Marketing service fee income from an associate (i), (xiii) 12 -
Theatre rental paid to an associate (i), (xiv) 124 -
Corporate guarantees given in respect of
banking facilities granted to associates (i), (xv) 17,100 48,207
Notes:

(i) Mr. Chow, Phoon Chiong Kit (“Mr. Phoon”), Chu Siu Tsun, Stephen (“Mr. Chu”) and Chan Sik Hong,
David (“Mr. Chan”), who are directors of the Company during the year, are interested, directly or indirectly,
in the above transactions as directors and/or beneficial shareholders of certain of these companies.

(i) The Group acted as the distributor of the films produced by the related companies and the film distribution
commission income was charged according to the terms of the distribution agreements dated 21 April
1997 and 2 August 1999 or charged according to prices and conditions similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

(iii) The rental income was charged at a rate of approximately HK$30,000 (2003: HK$30,000) per month for
sub-letting a portion of the Group’s office premises to an associate of the Golden Harvest Private Group.

(iv) The interest expense to an associate of Golden Harvest Private Group was charged at Hong Kong dollars
short-term time deposit rate plus 1% per annum.

(v) The consultancy fee paid represented the film production and distribution consulting services provided by

a related company to the Group and was charged according to the terms of the agreement dated 1 October

2001.

(vi) The royalty income was charged according to the terms of the respective distribution agreements.
(vii)  The management fee income represented the following:

- an amount of HK$288,000 related to accounting services provided to two associates of the Group
which were charged at rates of HK$10,000 per month (2003: HK$10,000) and HK$14,000 per
month (2003: HK$14,000 per month), respectively; and

- an amount of approximately HK$739,000 related to consultancy services provided to two associates
of the Group which were charged at rates of HK$120,000 (2003: HK$120,000) per month from
July to December 2003 and RMBS5,000 (2003: RMBS5,000) per month from July to October 2003,

respectively.

(viii)  The Group acted as the distributor of a film produced by an associate and the film distribution commission
income was charged according to the terms of the distribution agreement dated 6 January 2003.

(ix) The film sourcing service fee was charged at a rate of HK$11,000 per month (2003: HK$11,000 per
month).

(x) The accounting service fee was charged at a rate of S$1,500 (2003: S$1,500) per month.
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28.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(xi) The screen rental paid was charged according to prices and conditions similar to those offered to other

customers of the associate.

(xii)  The ticketing system development cost paid was charged according to prices and conditions similar to
those offered to other customers of the associate.

(xiii)  The marketing service fee income was charged according to prices and conditions similar to those offered

to other customers of the associate.

(xiv)  The theatre rental fee was charged according to price and conditions similar to those offered to other

customers of the associate.

(xv)  The corporate guarantee was given by the Group in respect of banking facilities granted to an associate at

nil consideration.

Certain transactions amounting to HK$899,000 (2003: HK$1,447,000) included in notes (ii) and (v) above with
three related companies (2003: four related companies) constituted connected transactions as defined in the

Listing Rules.

None of the other related party transactions set out above constituted connected transactions as defined in the

Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is analysed as follows:

Fees:
Executive directors
Non-executive directors
Independent non-executive directors

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind:

Executive directors
Non-executive directors
Independent non-executive directors

Pension contributions:
Executive directors
Non-executive directors
Independent non-executive directors

2004 2003
HKS$’000 HK$°000
120 120

120 120
12,240 11,352
12,240 11,352
97 97

97 97
12,457 11,569
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29.

30.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

The above remuneration of directors fell within the following bands:

2004 2003

Number Number

Nil — HK$1,000,000 4 7
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 1 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 - 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 1 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 1 -
8 11

There was no other arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
Five highest paid individuals
Of the five highest paid individuals, four (2003: four) were directors of the Company and their remuneration has been

included in the directors’ remuneration disclosures above. The remuneration of the remaining one (2003: one) non-
director, highest paid individual for the year is as follows:

2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,720 1,228
Pension contributions 12 12
1,732 1,240

The above remuneration of the non-director, highest paid individual employee fell within the band of HK$1,500,001 —
HK$2,000,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Guarantee of banking facilities
granted to associates 17,100 48,207 17,100 47,034

In addition to above, an associate of the Group had executed a guarantee to a banker in favour of certain third parties of
approximately HK$11,589,000 (2003: HK$16,521,000) as at the balance sheet date.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment:
Group
2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$’000
Contracted for 1,888 2,854
Authorised, but not contracted for 29,159 -
31,047 2,854
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30.

31.

32.

33.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain of its office premises and cinemas under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 13 years.

Group
2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$’000
Total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases for
land and buildings:

Within one year 33,760 49,073
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 94,507 128,227
After five years 33,584 3,790
161,851 181,090

Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the above were subject to contingent rent payments, which
were charged for the amount of 17% to 28% (2003: 17% to 29%) of their monthly or annual gross box office
takings in excess of the base rents as determined in respective lease agreements. In addition, 10% of theatre
confectionery sales and advertising income are also charged for certain leases.

The Company had no significant commitments at the balance sheet date (2003: Nil).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the following events occurred:

()

(iD)

On 14 July 2004, the Company entered into the Subscription Agreement pursuant to which the Company issued
and allotted 155,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.25 per share to Typhoon Music on 11 August 2004.
Further details of the subscription are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

On 14 July 2004, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with Typhoon Music
and Abba Movies Company Limited, an independent third party, for the establishment of a joint venture company
(the “JV Co”) solely to make loans for Chinese language motion picture production. Pursuant to the JV Agreement,
the Group would have a 60% equity interest in the JV Co. The Group’s capital contribution for the JV Co
amounted to HK$6 million and was paid accordingly subsequent to year end. The above transaction also constituted
a connected transaction as defined in the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Subscription Agreement and the JV Agreement are set out in an announcement of the Company
dated 16 July 2004.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements, due to the adoption of a revised SSAP during the current year,
the accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and balances in the financial statements have been revised to
comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have been made and certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 11 October 2004.
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Set out below is the accountants’ report of Warner Village Taiwan as extracted from the Company’s prospectus
dated 22 December 2004.

Il ERNST & YOUNG
ok gt g OE KO

15th Floor
Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road
Central

Hong Kong

22 December 2004

The Board of Directors
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited

Dear Sirs,

We set out below our report on the financial information regarding Warner Village Cinemas Co., Ltd. (“Warner
Village Taiwan”) to be acquired by Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) pursuant
to a conditional sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 18 October 2004 made between Golden
Sky Pacific Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Village Cinemas International Pty Ltd.
(“Village Cinemas”), Warner Bros Entertainment Inc. (“Warner Bros”), and two Taiwan corporations (the
“Taiwan Investors™), prepared on the basis as set out in section 1 below, for inclusion in the prospectus issued
by the Company dated 22 December 2004 (the “Prospectus”).

Warner Village Taiwan was incorporated as a limited company under the provision of the Company Law of the
Republic of China on 25 July 1997. During the years ended 30 June 2002, 2003 and 2004 (the “Relevant
Periods™), Warner Village Taiwan was principally engaged in film exhibition and leisure operation. Warner
Village Taiwan was a joint venture of Village Cinemas and Warner Bros.

The financial statements of Warner Village Taiwan for the Relevant Periods, prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the Republic of China, were audited by Diwan, Ernst & Young,
certified public accountants registered in the Republic of China.

For the purpose of this report, we have examined the financial statements and the management accounts of
Warner Village Taiwan for the Relevant Periods, which were prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong, in accordance with the Statements of Auditing Standards and Auditing
Guideline “Prospectuses and the reporting accountant” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The summaries of the profit and loss accounts, the statements of changes in equity and the cash flow statements
of Warner Village Taiwan for the Relevant Periods and of the balance sheets of Warner Village Taiwan as at 30
June 2002, 2003 and 2004 (the “Summaries”) as set out in this report have been prepared, and are presented on
the basis as set out in section 1 below.

The Summaries are the responsibility of the directors of the Company who approve their issuance. The
directors of the Company are responsible for the content of the Prospectus relating to Warner Village Taiwan
in which this report is included. It is our responsibility to compile the Summaries together with the notes
thereto, to form an independent opinion on such information and to report our opinion to you.

Fundamental uncertainty relating to going concern basis

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in section 1 to this report
concerning the basis of the presentation of the Summaries prepared by the directors of the Company. As
explained in section 1 to this report, Warner Village Taiwan’s financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the continuing support of the existing shareholders
and the financial support to be provided by the Company after the completion of the Acquisition. The Summaries
do not include any adjustments that may be necessary should the Acquisition not be completed and hence the
financial support from the Company not be forthcoming, and should Warner Village Taiwan’s existing

—46 —



APPENDIX II FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON WARNER VILLAGE TAIWAN

shareholders fail to provide the continuing support, Warner Village Taiwan may not be able to continue in
business as a going concern. Adjustments would have to be made to restate the values of Warner Village
Taiwan’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify its non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively. We consider that
appropriate disclosures have been made and our opinion is not qualified in this respect.

In our opinion, the Summaries together with the notes thereto give, for the purpose of this report, a true and
fair view of the results and cash flows of Warner Village Taiwan for the Relevant Periods and of the balance
sheets of Warner Village Taiwan as at 30 June 2002, 2003 and 2004.

1.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Summaries have been prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding that Warner Village
Taiwan had net current liabilities and deficiency in assets as the directors of Warner Village Taiwan
expect that the existing shareholders will provide the continuing support to Warner Village Taiwan, and
the Company will provide financial support to Warner Village Taiwan after the completion of the
Acquisition. Should the Acquisition not be completed and hence the financial support from the Company
not be forthcoming, and should Warner Village Taiwan’s existing shareholders fail to provide the
continuing support, Warner Village Taiwan may not be able to continue in business as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values of Warner Village Taiwan’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify its non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in the Summaries.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial information as set out in this report has been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The financial information has been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

(b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Warner Village
Taiwan and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(1) gross box office takings, when the services have been rendered to the buyers;
(i1) theatre advertising income, on an accrual basis;

(iii) income from confectionery sales, at the point of sales when the confectionery are given to
the customers;

(iv)  rental income, in the period in which the properties are subleasing and on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms; and

(v)  interest, on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the
effective rate of interest applicable.

(c) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where Warner Village Taiwan is the lessor, rentals
receivable for subleasing certain leasehold land and buildings, are credited to the profit and loss
account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where Warner Village Taiwan is the
lessee, rental payable under the operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(d) Retirement benefits scheme
Warner Village Taiwan, as required by Labour Standards Law, makes regular contributions to a
retirement fund to meet employees’ retirement and termination benefit entitlements. The

contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the profit and loss account as they became payable in accordance with the rules of Labour
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(e)

®

(g)

(h)

Standards Law. The funds are administrated by a committee and are deposited in the committee’s
name with a government approved financial institution, which acts as the trustee.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there is any indication of impairment
of any asset, or whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for
an asset in prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset’s value in use or its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit and loss account in the period in which
it arises, unless the assets is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed
assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for the purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 6 2/3% -20%
Furniture and fixtures 6’1, % — 20%
Computer software 20% — 50%
Office equipment and cinema facilities 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset recognised in the profit and loss
account, is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Cinema development costs

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop and search for new cinema site is capitalised and
deferred only when the projects are clearly defined; and the expenditure is separately identifiable
and can be measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the projects are technically
feasible; and the new cinema have commercial value.

Upon confirming the cinema site all costs relating to that particular site will be transferred to
fixed assets and are then depreciated at the applicable rate to write-off the cost over its estimated
useful life.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.
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()

@

(k)

M

(m)

Other investments

Other investments are unquoted shares held for short term and are stated at fair values on the
basis of the realiseable values at the balance sheet.

Inventories

Inventories represent snacks and beverage and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost is determined on the
first-in, first-out basis and includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account, or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period,
directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except where the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised:

(1) except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(ii)  deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result
of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time
is included in finance costs in the profit and loss account.

Provisions for long service payments are made based on relevant labour laws and regulations
governing retirement payments and are reviewed by the directors on an annual basis and adjusted
where applicable.

Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance

sheet date are translated at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at that date. Exchange
differences are dealt with in the profit and loss account.
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(n) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts

which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of Warner Village Taiwan’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

3. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

The following is a summary of the profit and loss accounts of Warner Village Taiwan for the Relevant
Periods, which is presented on the basis set out in section 1 above:

Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TURNOVER (a) 239,200 335,896 432,658
Cost of sales (109,199) (151,351 (192,005)
Gross profit 130,001 184,545 240,653
Other revenue (a) 48,158 46,182 55,069
Selling and distribution costs (15,962) (28,538) (26,226)
General and administrative expenses (193,468) (253,859) (261,799)
Provision for impairment on fixed assets (2,874) - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (b) (34,145) (51,670) 7,697
Finance costs (d) (8,891) (10,164) -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (43,036) (61,834) 7,697
Tax (e) — _ _
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS (43,036) (61,834) 7,697

Dividend () — — —
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

Turnover and other revenue

Turnover represents proceeds from box office admission and theatre concession sales, and advertising agency fee
earned.

An analysis of Warner Village Taiwan’s turnover and other revenue is as follows:

Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Turnover 239,200 335,896 432,658
Other revenue:
Rental income 40,936 31,829 33,551
Exchange gains, net - 649 10,657
Interest income 54 33 143
Compensation received for the postponement of
the construction project - - 3,687
Compensation received for early termination of
tenancy agreement 3,530 303 -
Sponsorship income 552 2,164 5,079
Income from expired vouchers 1,413 8,857 1
Advertisement and other revenue 1,673 2,347 1,951
48,158 46,182 55,069
287,358 382,078 487,727

Profit/(loss) from operating activities
Warner Village Taiwan’s profit/(loss) from operating activities is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Cost of inventories sold 6,591 10,643 16,927
Cost of service rendered 102,608 140,708 175,078
Depreciation 28,937 41,357 43,963
Minimum lease payments under operating leases on
leasehold land and buildings 87,886 118,086 136,267
Rental income (40,936) (31,829) (35,551)
Staff costs (excluding directors’ remuneration
— Section 3 note (c)):
Wages and salaries 17,419 28,036 26,437
Pension scheme contributions 226 255 269
17,645 28,291 26,706
Auditors’ remuneration 74 83 83
Provision for impairment of fixed assets 2,874 - -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 1,023 -
Exchange gains, net - (649) (10,657)
Interest income (54) (33) (143)

— 51 -



APPENDIX II FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON WARNER VILLAGE TAIWAN

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ and senior executives’ remuneration

Year ended 30 June
2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Fees _ _ _
Emoluments:
Basic salaries, housing benefits, other allowances and
benefits in kind _ _ _
Pension scheme contributions - _ _

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004

Number of Number of Number of

directors directors directors

Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2 2

The details of the emoluments and the band of the five highest paid, non-director individuals during the Relevant
Periods are as follows:
Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Basic salaries, housing benefits, other allowances and
benefits in kind 3,771 5,233 4,867

Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004

Number of Number of Number of

employees employees employees

Nil to HK$1,000,000 4 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1 1
5 5 5

During the Relevant Periods, no remuneration was paid by Warner Village Taiwan to the directors or any of the
five highest paid, non-director individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining Warner Village Taiwan or as
compensation for loss of office. No director of Warner Village Taiwan waived any remuneration during the
Relevant Periods.

Finance costs
Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years 8,891 10,164 —

Tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as no assessable profits was arising in Hong Kong in
respect of the Relevant Periods. Tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been calculated at the rate of
tax prevailing in the Republic of China, being country in which Warner Village Taiwan operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Warner Village Taiwan has tax losses arising outside Hong Kong of approximately HK$29,042,000, HK$52,854,000
and HK$47,333,000 for the years ended 30 June 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively, that can only be carried
forward for five years under the relevant legislation, interpretations and practices in Republic of China, for
offsetting against future taxable profits of Warner Village Taiwan. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as Warner Village Taiwan has been loss-making for some time.

Dividend

No dividend has been paid or declared by Warner Village Taiwan to its then shareholders during each of the
Relevant Periods.
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4.

BALANCE SHEETS

The following is a summary of the balance sheets of Warner Village Taiwan as at 30 June 2002, 2003
and 2004, which is presented on the basis set out in section 1 above:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets

Rental deposits

Cinema development costs

CURRENT ASSETS

Other investment

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Due from a shareholder

Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payables

Accrued liabilities and other payables
Due to related companies

Due to shareholders

Bank borrowings

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for long services payment
Deposits received

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital
Reserves

Notes

(a)
(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)

()

(g)
(H

()
(h)
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30 June

2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
269,069 298,863 285,509
104,839 109,320 92,803
4,496 1,945 -
378,404 410,128 378,312
- - 1,217

572 760 1,095
13,698 7,761 57,114
107,547 23,646 27,011
8,192 - -
1,417 26,068 71,022
131,426 58,235 157,459
15,068 10,748 44,939
26,822 30,418 57,569
84,340 2,495 10,733
93,096 629,682 619,982
433,432 - -
652,758 673,343 733,223
(521,332) (615,108) (575,764)
(142,928) (204,980) (197,452)
20 20 24
9,306 9,088 8,915
9,326 9,108 8,939
(152,254) (214,088) (206,391)
2,727 2,727 2,727
(154,981) (216,815) (209,118)
(152,254) (214,088) (206,391)
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4.

BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

Fixed assets

Cost:

At 1 July 2001
Transfer from deferred
development costs

Additions

At 30 June and 1 July 2002

Transfer from deferred
development costs

Additions

Disposals

At 30 June and 1 July 2003

Transfer from deferred
development costs

Additions

Disposals

At 30 June 2004

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment:

At 1 July 2001

Provided during the year
Impairment

At 30 June and 1 July 2002
Provided during the year
Disposals

At 30 June and 1 July 2003
Provided during the year
Disposals

At 30 June 2004

Net book value:

At 30 June 2002

At 30 June 2003

At 30 June 2004

Office

Furniture equipment

Leasehold and Computer and cinema
improvements fixtures software facilities Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
59,720 153,092 8,394 4,189 225,395
3,604 2,375 273 16 6,268
71,514 56,105 6,207 901 134,727
134,838 211,572 14,874 5,106 366,390
1,291 1,176 63 21 2,551
33,217 32,568 3,057 781 69,623
- - (4,130) (173) (4,303)
169,346 245,316 13,864 5,735 434,261
1,075 756 72 42 1,945
14,449 10,555 622 3,038 28,664
- (7,079) (2,899) (182) ( 10,160)
184,870 249,548 11,659 8,633 454,710
14,649 45,510 3,632 1,719 65,510
7,144 18,683 2,304 806 28,937
3 2,871 - - 2,874
21,796 67,064 5,936 2,525 97,321
10,704 26,812 2,295 1,546 41,357
- - (2,478) (1802) (13,280
32,500 93,876 5,753 3,269 135,398
11,705 28,464 2,088 1,706 43,963
- (7,079) (2,899) (182) ( 10,160)
44,205 115,261 4,942 4,793 169,201
113,042 144,508 8,938 2,581 269,069
136,846 151,440 8,111 2,466 298,863
140,665 134,287 6,717 3,840 285,509
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(®

Cinema development costs

HK$’000

At 1 July 2001 10,764

Transfer to fixed assets (6,268)

At 30 June 2002 and at 1 July 2002 4,496

Transfer to fixed assets (2,551)

At 30 June 2003 and at 1 July 2003 1,945

Transfer to fixed assets (1,945)

At 30 June 2004 —
Other investment

30 June

2002 2003 2004

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Unquoted shares, at fair value — — 1,217

Other investment represented the investment in Warner Village Cinema Limited (“WVC”). Pursuant to a conditional
sale and purchase agreement entered into between Warner Village Taiwan and an independent third party subsequent
to 30 June 2004, Warner Village Taiwan disposed of the above investment to an independent third party for a
consideration of NT$5 million (equivalent to HK$1.2 million).

Inventories

Inventories represent snacks and beverages. None of inventories are stated at net realisable value as at 30 June
2002, 2003 and 2004.

Accounts receivable

Warner Village Taiwan usually grants credit period ranging from one to three months. The ageing analysis of the
accounts receivable, net of provision at 30 June, is as follows:

30 June

2002 2003 2004

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Current — 30 days 12,318 3,707 54,534%
4 to 6 months 310 2,382 1,384
7 to 12 months 1,070 860 851
Over 1 year - 812 345
13,698 7,761 57.114

* Included in accounts receivable aged current — 30 days at 30 June 2004, HK$44,148,000 represents

receivable from WVC for the development costs of Tien Mou cinema site paid on its behalf.
Balances with shareholders and related companies
The balances with shareholders and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
Subsequent to 30 June 2004, Warner Village Taiwan has repaid NT$300 million (equivalent to HK$68.2 million)

to the shareholders in July 2004 and the amounts due to shareholders of NT$1,200 million (equivalent to HK$272.7
million) will be capitalised as issued capital before the date of completion of the Agreement.
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(2)

(h)

()

Accounts payables

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable at 30 June is as follows:

30 June
2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Current — 3 months 15,055 5,966 43,792
4 to 6 months 1 700 793
7 to 12 months 12 1,398 184
Over 1 year - 2,684 170
15,068 10,748 44,939

Bank borrowings

30 June
2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bank loans, secured 427,273 - -
Bank overdraft 6,159 - -
433,432 — —

Bank and other loans repayable within one year and
portion classified as current liabilities 433,432 - -

At 30 June 2002, Warner Village Taiwan’s banking facilities were secured by Standby Documentary Credit issued
by Chase Manhattan International Limited. Warner Village Taiwan fully repaid its bank loan in May 2003.

Commitments
Operating lease commitments

At 30 June 2002, 2003 and 2004, Warner Village Taiwan leased certain of its cinema sites under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 19 years.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for land and buildings:

30 June
2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Within one year 110,816 153,238 163,263
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 501,547 678,096 677,845
After five years 757,352 874,959 894,704
1,369,715 1,706,293 1,735,812
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S. STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

The statements of changes in equity of Warner Village Taiwan for the Relevant Periods prepared on the

basis as set out in section 1 above are as follows:

Issued Accumulated
capital losses Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 July 2001 2,727 (111,945) (109,218)
Net loss for the year - (43,036) (43,036)
At 30 June 2002 and 1 July 2002 2,727 (154,981) (152,254)
Net loss for the year - (61,834) (61,834)
At 30 June 2003 and 1 July 2003 2,727 (216,815) (214,088)
Net profit for the year - 7,697 7,697
At 30 June 2004 2,727 (209,118) (206,391)

6. CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

The cash flow statements of Warner Village Taiwan for the Relevant Periods prepared on the basis as

set out in Section 1 above are as follows:

Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax (43,036) (61,834) 7,697
Adjustments for:
Interest income (59 (33) (143)
Finance costs 8,891 10,164 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 1,023 -
Depreciation 28,937 41,357 43,963
Provision for impairment on fixed assets 2,874 - -
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (2,388) (9,323) 51,517
Increase in other investment - - (1,217)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (313) (188) (335)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivables (8,973) 5,937 (49,353)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (21,757) 83,901 (3,365)
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due
from a shareholder - 8,192 -
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payables 3,562 (4,320) 34,191
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities
and other payables 14,084 3,596 27,151
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
related companies 82,231 (81,845) 8,238
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to shareholders (82,046) 536,586 (9,700)
Increase in provision for long services payment - 4
Decrease in deposit received (1,861) (218) (173)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (17,457) 542,318 56,958
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6.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash generated from/(used in) operations (17,457) 542,318 56,958
Interest received 54 33 143
Interest paid (8,891) (10,164) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (26,294) 532,187 57,101
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets (134,727) (69,623) (28,664)
Rental deposits refunded/(paid) (1,100) (4,481) 16,517
Net cash outflow from investing activities (135,827) (74,104) (12,147)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdown/(repayment) of bank loans 161,826 (433,432) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 161,826 (433,432) -
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (295) 24,651 44,954
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,712 1,417 26,068
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 1,417 26,068 71,022
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 1,417 26,068 71,022

SEGMENT INFORMATION

All the assets and liabilities of Warner Village Taiwan are located in the Republic of China and its
operations are considered by the directors to belong to one business segment. Accordingly, further
segment information is not presented.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, Warner Village Taiwan also had the following transactions
with related parties.

Year ended 30 June

2002 2003 2004

Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Film rental paid to a related party (1) 19,750 32,738 40,179
Note:

(i) The film rental expense was paid to Warner Bros. Taiwan Branch Office, a related party, which acted as the

distributor of films for Warner Village Taiwan. The rental was charged on a title by title basis based on 60 to 65

percent of the gross box office takings for the first week of release and reduced by 5 percent every following
week.
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10.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no other significant events took place subsequent to 30 June
2004.

SUBSEQUENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
No audited financial statements have been prepared by Warner Village Taiwan subsequent to 30 June

2004.

Yours faithfully,
ERNST & YOUNG

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
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Set out below on pages 60 to 73 of this Appendix is a summary of the unaudited pro forma financial
information on the Enlarged Group as extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 22 December 2004.

@ THE ACQUISITION OF 100% EQUITY INTERESTS OF WARNER VILLAGE TAIWAN
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE ENLARGED GROUP

1. UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
OF THE ENLARGED GROUP AFTER COMPLETION

The following table is an illustrative and unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of assets and
liabilities of the Enlarged Group as at 30 June 2004 which has been prepared for the purpose of
illustration as if the completion of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan
had taken place on 30 June 2004.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group is based
on the audited consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 30 June 2004, the audited balance sheet of
Warner Village Taiwan as at 30 June 2004 as extracted from the accountants’ report on Warner Village
Taiwan as set out in Appendix II to this Prospectus and adjusted to reflect the effect of the acquisition
of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan and the repayment of NT$300 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$68.2 million) to the existing shareholders of Warner Village Taiwan.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group is
prepared to provide the unaudited pro forma financial information on the Enlarged Group as a result of
the completion of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan. As it has been
prepared for illustrative purpose only and because of its nature, it may not give a true picture of the
financial position of the Enlarged Group at any future date.

Warner Pro forma
Village consolidated of
The Group Taiwan Pro forma the Enlarged
as at as at Pro forma consolidation Group as at
30 June 2004 30 June 2004  adjustments adjustments 30 June 2004
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 Notes HK$’000 Note HK$’000
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 55,753 285,509 341,262
Interest in a subsidiary - - 243,048 1 (243,048) 3 -
Interest in associates 182,613 - 182,613
Interest in club memberships 4,380 - 4,380
Rental deposits 11,869 92,803 104,672
Trademarks 79,421 - 79,421
Negative goodwill - - (102,361) 3 (102,361)
Total non-current assets 334,036 378,312 243,048 (345,409) 609,987
Current assets
Other investment - 1,217 1,217
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 23,387 27,011 50,398
Inventories 556 1,095 1,651
Film rights and films in progress 20,184 - 20,184
Accounts receivable 22,471 57,114 79,585
Cash and bank balances 22,575 71,022 (68,182) 1,2 25,415
Total current assets 89,173 157,459 (68,182) 178,450
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Warner Pro forma
Village consolidated of
The Group Taiwan Pro forma the Enlarged
as at as at Pro forma consolidation Group as at
30 June 2004 30 June 2004  adjustments adjustments 30 June 2004
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Notes HK$'000 Note HK$'000
Current liabilities
Accounts payables 52,070 44,939 97,009
Accrued liabilities and
other payable 30,509 57,569 88,078
Customer deposits 2,330 - 2,330
Current portion of finance
lease payable 471 - 471
Provision for employee
benefits 1,319 - 1,319
Tax payable 11,114 - 11,114
Interest bearing bank
borrowings - - 24,305 1 24,305
Due to related companies - 10,733 10,733
Due to shareholders - 619,982 (340,909) 2 (279,073) 3 -
Total current liabilities 97,813 733,223 (316,604) (279,073) 235,359
Net current liabilities (8,640) (575,764) (56,909)
Total assets less current
liabilities 325,396 (197,452) 553,078
Non-current liabilities
Non-current portion of finance
lease payables 709 - 709
Provision for long service
payments 3,800 24 3,824
Deferred tax liabilities 878 - 878
Deposits received - 8,915 8,915
Interest bearing bank
borrowings - - 97,219 1 97,219
Total non-current liabilities 5,387 8,939 97,219 111,545
Net assets/(liabilities) 320,009 (206,391) 394,251 (66,336) 441,533
Shareholders’ equity 320,009 (206,391) 394,251 1,2 (66,336) 441,533
Notes:
1. The adjustment reflects the payment of consideration of US$31.16 million (equivalent to HK$243.1 million) to be

given by the Group to acquire 100% equity interests in Warner Village Taiwan on the date of completion. The
consideration was calculated based on the total consideration of US$38 million after deducting the deposits
already paid by the Taiwan Investors of US$6.84 million. Out of which, 50% of the consideration is assumed to
be financed by bank borrowings and the remaining 50% of the consideration paid through the proceeds from the
shares placement of 509.7 million ordinary shares at HK$0.25 per share (including the proposed rights issue on
30 November 2004). The bank borrowings are 5 years term loan and the interest is assumed to be charged at 6%
per annum.

2. The adjustment reflects the capitalisation of NT$1,200 million (equivalent to HK$272.7 million) shareholders'

loans of Warner Village Taiwan before the date of completion and the repayment of NT$300 million (equivalent
to HK$68.2 million) in July 2004 to the existing shareholders of Warner Village Taiwan.

— 61 -



APPENDIX III PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ON THE ENLARGED GROUP

3. The pro forma consolidation adjustments reflect (i) elimination of the Group's 100% equity interests in Warner
Village Taiwan after acquisition; and (ii) estimated negative goodwill of approximately HK$102.4 million arising
from the acquisition of the entire equity interests in Warner Village Taiwan by the Group (see note 4 below). The
estimated negative goodwill was assumed to be recognised in the profit and loss account on a systematic basis
over the remaining average useful life of about 10 years of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets.

4. Under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Hong Kong, the Group will apply the purchase method to
account for the acquisition of 100% equity interests in Warner Village Taiwan. In applying the purchase method,
the identifiable assets and liabilities of Warner Village Taiwan will be recorded on the balance sheet of the
Enlarged Group at their fair values at the date of completion, and all the capital and reserves of Warner Village
Taiwan upon completion will be eliminated as the pre-acquisition reserves of the Enlarged Group. Any goodwill
or negative goodwill arising on the acquisition will be determined as the excess or deficit of the purchase
consideration deemed to be incurred by the Group over the Group's interests in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Warner Village Taiwan at the date of completion.

For the purpose of preparing the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of assets and liabilities of the
Enlarged Group after the completion, the net book value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Warner Village
Taiwan, as extracted from the accountants' report on Warner Village Taiwan, is applied in the calculation of the
estimated negative goodwill arising from the acquisition. Since the fair value of the assets and liabilities of
Warner Village Taiwan at the date of completion may be substantially different from their adjusted book value
used in the preparation of the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of assets and liabilities above, the
actual negative goodwill arising from the acquisition of the Enlarged Group may be different from the estimated
negative goodwill as shown above.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF THE
ENLARGED GROUP

The following table is an illustrative and unaudited pro forma consolidated profit and loss account of
the Enlarged Group for the year ended 30 June 2004 which has been prepared for the purpose of
illustration as if the completion of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan
had taken place on 1 July 2003.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated profit and loss account of the Enlarged Group is based on the
audited consolidated profit and loss account of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2004, and the
audited consolidated profit and loss account of Warner Village Taiwan for the year ended 30 June 2004
as extracted from the accountants' report on Warner Village Taiwan as set out in Appendix II to this
Prospectus and adjusted to reflect the effect of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner
Village Taiwan and the repayment of NT$300 million (equivalent to approximately HK$68.2 million)
to the existing shareholders of Warner Village Taiwan.
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The unaudited pro forma consolidated profit and loss account of the Enlarged Group is prepared to
provide the unaudited pro forma financial information on the Enlarged Group as a result of the completion
of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan. As it has been prepared for
illustrative purpose only and because of its nature, it may not give a true picture of the financial
position of the Enlarged Group at any future date.

Warner Pro forma
Village consolidated of
The Group Taiwan the Enlarged
for the for the Pro forma Group for the
year ended year ended Pro forma consolidation year ended
30 June 2004 30 June 2004  adjustments adjustments 30 June 2004
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 Note HK$’000 Note HK$’000
Turnover 218,477 432,658 651,135
Cost of sales (94,093) (192,005) (286,098)
Gross Profit 124,384 240,653 365,037
Negative goodwill recognised
as income - - 10,236 2 10,236
Interest income 14 143 157
Other revenue 12,506 54,926 67,432
Selling and distribution costs (106,229 ) (26,226) (132,455)
General and administrative
expenses (52,488) (261,799) (314,287)
Other operating expenses, net (5,751) - (5,751)
[mpairment of film rights (3,543) - (3,543)
Profit/(loss) from operating
income (31,107) 7,697 10,236 (13,174)
Impairment of interest in an
associate (1,413) - (1,413)
Finance costs (363) - (7,291) 1 (7,654)
Share of profits and losses
of associates 31,983 - 31,983
Profit/(loss) before tax (900) 7,697 (7,291) 10,236 9,742
Tax (10,763) - (10,763)
Net profit/(loss) from ordinary
activities attributable to
shareholders (11,663) 7,697 (7,291) 10,236 (1,021)
Notes:
1. The adjustment reflects the interest payable on bank borrowings, which were used to finance the consideration of

the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan, as set out in section 1 of this Appendix. The
interest is assumed to be charged at 6% per annum.

2. The adjustment reflects the recognition of estimated negative goodwill arising from the acquisition. For illustrative
purpose, the estimated negative goodwill is of approximately HK$102.4 million as set out in section 1 of this
Appendix, which is assumed to be recognised in the profit and loss account on a systematic basis over the
remaining average useful life of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets.
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3. UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE ENLARGED
GROUP

The following table is an illustrative and unaudited pro forma consolidated cash flow statement of the
Enlarged Group for the year ended 30 June 2004 which has been prepared for the purpose of illustration
as if the completion of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan had taken
place on 1 July 2003.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated cash flow statement of the Enlarged Group is based on the
audited consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2004, and the audited
consolidated cash flow statement of Warner Village Taiwan for the year ended 30 June 2004 as extracted
from the accountants' report on Warner Village Taiwan as set out in Appendix II to this Prospectus and
adjusted to reflect the effect of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan and
the repayment of NT$300 million (equivalent to approximately HK$68.2 million) to the existing
shareholders of Warner Village Taiwan.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated cash flow statement of the Enlarged Group is prepared to provide
the unaudited pro forma financial information on the Enlarged Group as a result of the completion of
the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan. As it has been prepared for illustrative
purpose only and because of its nature, it may not give a true picture of the financial position of the
Enlarged Group at any future date.

Warner Pro forma
Village consolidated of
The Group Taiwan the Enlarged
for the for the Pro forma Group for the
year ended year ended Pro forma consolidation year ended
30 June 2004 30 June 2004 adjustments adjustments 30 June 2004
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax (900) 7,697 (7,291) 10,236 9,742
Adjustments for:
Interest income (14) (143) (157)
Finance costs 363 - 7,291 7,654
Negative goodwill recognised
as income - - (10,236) (10,236)
Depreciation 16,245 43,963 60,208
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,345 - 1,345
Gain on disposal of associates 47 - (47)
Impairment of interest in an
associate 1,413 - 1,413
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 161 - 161
Exchange gains arising from
translation of advances to
overseas associates in Asia
and other monetary assets
and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies as at
the balance sheet date (2,352) - (2,352)
Share of profits and losses
of associates (31,983) - (31,983)
[mpairment of film rights 3,543 - 3,543
Write-back of provision
for doubtful debts, net (2,927) - (2,927)
Exchange adjustments (636) - (636)
Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes (15,789) 51,517 - - 35,728
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Warner Pro forma
Village consolidated of
The Group Taiwan the Enlarged
for the for the Pro forma Group for the
year ended year ended Pro forma consolidation year ended
30 June 2004 30 June 2004 adjustments adjustments 30 June 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes (15,789) 51,517 - - 35,728
Increase in other investment - (1,217) (1,217)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables 8,007 (3,365) 4,642
Increase in inventory (155) (335) (490)
Decrease in film rights and
films in progress 3,971 - 3,971
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable 486 (49,353) (48,867)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable (17,624) 34,191 16,567
Increase/(decrease) in accrued
liabilities and other payables (6,950) 27,151 7,291 27,492
Decrease in amounts due to shareholders - (9,700) (68,182) (77,882)
Increase in amounts due to
related companies - 8,238 8,238
Decrease in customer deposits (2,107) - (2,107)
Decrease in provision for employee benefit (296) - (296)
Increase in provision for long
service payments 709 4 13
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (29,748) 57,131 (60,891) (33,508)
Interest received 14 143 157
Interest paid (264) - (7,291) (7,555)
Interest element on finance lease
rental payments 99) - 99)
Overseas tax paid (445) - (445)
Overseas tax refunded 474 - 474
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities (30,068) 57,274 (68,182) (40,976)
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Warner Pro forma
Village consolidated of
The Group Taiwan the Enlarged
for the for the Pro forma Group for the
year ended year ended Pro forma consolidation year ended
30 June 2004 30 June 2004 adjustments adjustments 30 June 2004
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets (1,694) (28,004) (30,358)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 210 - 210
Proceeds from disposal of associates 1,632 - 1,632
Acquisition of subsidiaries (101) - (243,048) (243,149)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 898 - 898
Repayment from associates, net 324 - 324
Rental deposits paid (647) - (647)
Refund of rental deposits 1,912 16,517 18,429
Decrease in deposit received - (173) (173)
Additions to trademarks (218) - (218)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
investing activities 2,316 (12,320) (243,048) (253,052)
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of new shares, net 22,428 - 121,524 143,952
Repayment of finance lease obligations (439) - - (439)
Advance from bank loans - - 121,524 121,524
Net cash inflow from financing activities 21,989 - 243,048 265,037
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5,763) 44,954 (68,182) (28,991)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 28,357 26,068 54,425
Exchange adjustments (19) - (19)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 22,575 71,022 (68,182) 25,415
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 22,575 71,022 (68,182) 25,415
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF ADJUSTED CONSOLIDATED NET TANGIBLE
ASSETS OF THE ENLARGED GROUP BEFORE AND AFTER COMPLETION

Set out below is an unaudited pro forma statement of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets of the
Group before the completion of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan
based on the audited consolidated net assets of the Group as at 30 June 2004 and an unaudited pro
forma statement of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets of the Enlarged Group after the completion
of the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan based on the unaudited pro forma
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group as at 30 June 2004 as set out in

this Appendix.

Audited
consolidated

net assets

of the Group

as at 30 June 2004
before completion

HK$°000
320,009

Unaudited

pro forma
consolidated

net assets

of the Enlarged
Group as at

30 June 2004
after completion

Less:

Intangible

assets

as at 30 June 2004

before completion
HK$’000
(79,421)

Less:

Intangible

assets

as at 30 June 2004

after completion

Consolidated
net tangible assets
of the Group
as at 30 June 2004
before completion

HK$°000
240,588

Unaudited

pro forma
consolidated

net tangible assets
of the Enlarged
Group as at

30 June 2004
after completion

Unaudited pro forma
adjusted consolidated
net tangible assets

of the Group

as at 30 June 2004
attributable

to each share

of the Company
before completion
(note 1)

HK$

0.27

Unaudited pro forma
adjusted consolidated
net tangible assets

of the Enlarged Group
as at 30 June 2004
attributable

to each share

of the Company

after completion

(note 3) (note 2)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$
441,533 22,940 464,473 0.33

Notes:

1. The number of the Company's shares used for the calculation of this amount is 884,287,500 which is the existing
shares in issue as at 30 June 2004 and does not include any share placements subsequent to 30 June 2004.

2. The number of the Company's shares used for the calculation of this amount is 1,394,000,000 which represents
the shares issued for the 50% of the consideration for the acquisition (including the proposed rights issue on 30
November 2004).

3. An estimated negative goodwill of approximately HK$102.4 million will arise upon the completion of the acquisition

of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan and is included in the intangible assets after completion.
Details of the estimated negative goodwill are set out in note 4 of section 1 in this Appendix.
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(In

THE ACQUISITION OF 40% EQUITY INTERESTS OF WARNER VILLAGE TAIWAN
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE ENLARGED GROUP

STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED PRO FORMA ADJUSTED CONSOLIDATED NET TANGIBLE
ASSETS OF THE ENLARGED GROUP

For illustrative purpose only, the following is a statement of the unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated
net tangible assets of the Enlarged Group, which is prepared based on the audited consolidated net
assets of the Group as at 30 June 2004, adjusted to reflect the effect of the acquisition of 40% equity
interests of Warner Village Taiwan, the repayment of NT$300 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$68.2 million) to the existing shareholders of Warner Village Taiwan and the proposed rights issue
on 30 November 2004.

Immediately
before completion
(Unaudited) Adjustments Pro forma
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
Net tangible assets 240,588 81,604 322,192
Notes:
(1) The unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net tangible asset value of the Group immediately before completion
is calculated as follows:
HK$°000
Audited consolidated net assets of the Group as at 30 June 2004 320,009
Less: Intangible assets (79,421)
Unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net tangible asset value of the Group
immediately before completion 240,588
(2) Following the completion, adjustments will be included as follows:
HK$°000
Net assets acquired from the acquisition of 40% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan 138,164
The proposed rights issue on 30 November 2004 62,000
Consideration payable to the acquisition (118,560)
Estimated negative goodwill arising from the acquisition (19,604)
Estimated negative goodwill arising from the acquisition 19,604
81,604
3) Unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net tangible asset value per Share
immediately before completion based on 884,287,500 Shares as at 30 June 2004
in issue before completion HK$0.27
Unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net tangible asset value per Share
immediately following completion based on 1,149,134,375 Shares to be in issue
following completion, which includes the proposed rights issue on 30 November 2004 HK$0.28
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2. PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE ENLARGED GROUP

The following is a summary of the pro forma statement of unaudited adjusted consolidated assets and
liabilities of the Enlarged Group, assuming the acquisition of 40% equity interests of Warner Village
Taiwan had been implemented on 30 June 2004 based on the audited consolidated balance sheet of the
Group as at 30 June 2004 and the audited balance sheet of Warner Village Taiwan as at 30 June 2004,
as set out in Appendix II of the Prospectus, and adjusted to reflect the effect of the acquisition of 40%
equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan, the repayment of NT$300 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$68.2 million) to the shareholders of Warner Village Taiwan and the proposed rights issue on 30

November 2004.

Warner
Village
The Group Taiwan
as at as at
30 June 2004 30 June 2004 Adjustments
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Non current tangible assets 254,615 378,312 (240,148)
Non current intangible assets 79,421 - (19,604)
Total non-current assets 334,036 378,312 (259,752)
Current assets 89,173 157,459 (154,739)
Current liabilities (97,813) (733,223) 721,367
Net current assets/(liabilities) (8,640) (575,764) 566,628
Total assets less current liabilities 325,396 (197,452) 306,876
Non-current liabilities (5,387) (18,939) (38,485)
Net assets 320,009 (206,391) 268,391
Net assets:
Net tangible assets 240,588 (206,391) 287,995
Net intangible assets 79,421 - (19,604)
320,009 (206,391) 268,391
Notes:
The adjustments represent:
(i) the consolidation of Warner Village Taiwan upon the completion;

(i) the payment of the consideration;

Total
Notes HKS$’000

(i) 392,779
(i), (ii) 59,817

452,596

(i), (ii), (iii), 91,893
(iv)

(i), (ii) (109,669)
(17,776)
434,820

(i), (ii) (52,811)

382,009

322,192
59,817

382,009

(iii) the repayment of NT$300 million (equivalent to approximately HK$68.2 million); and

(iv) the proposed rights issue on 30 November 2004.
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(III)

LETTER FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS

The following is the text of a report, prepared for the sole purpose of inclusion in this Prospectus,
received from the independent reporting accountants, Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong.

Il ERNST & YOUNG

Pk 4;? ?H' B $ B A 15th Floor
Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road
Central
Hong Kong

22 December 2004

The Board of Directors
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited

Dear Sirs,

We report on the unaudited pro forma financial information of the Enlarged Group (the “Group” (as
defined herein) together with Warner Village Taiwan (as defined herein)) set out on pages 75 to 85 in
Appendix III to the Prospectus dated 22 December 2004 issued by Golden Harvest Entertainment
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group”),
solely for illustrative purposes, to provide information about how the proposed acquisition of 100%
equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan or the proposed acquisition of 40% equity interests of Warner
Village Taiwan (as defined herein) by the Company and the transactions as described in the accompanying
introduction to the unaudited pro forma financial information of the Enlarged Group might have affected
the historical financial information in respect of the Group.

The historical financial information is derived from the audited historical financial information of the
Group and of Warner Village Taiwan. The basis of preparation of the pro forma financial information is
set out in the accompanying introduction and notes to the unaudited pro forma financial information of
the Enlarged Group.

Responsibilities

It is the responsibility solely of the directors of the Company to prepare the pro forma financial
information in accordance with Rule 4.29 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as required by the Listing Rules, on the pro forma financial
information and to report our opinion to you. We do not accept any responsibility for any reports
previously given by us on any financial information used in the compilation of the pro forma financial

information beyond that owed to those to whom those reports were addressed by us at the dates of their
issue.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with the Statements of Investment Circular Reporting Standards
and Bulletin 1998/8 “Reporting on pro forma financial information pursuant to the Listing Rules”
issued by the Auditing Practices Board in the United Kingdom. Our work, which involved no independent
examination of any of the underlying financial information, consisted primarily of comparing the
unadjusted financial information with the source documents, considering the evidence supporting the
adjustments and discussing the pro forma financial information with the directors of the Company.

Our work did not constitute an audit or review made in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and accordingly, we do
not express any such audit or review assurance on the pro forma financial information.
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The pro forma financial information is for illustrative purposes only, and because of its nature, it does
not provide any assurance or indication that any event will take place in the future and may not give a
true picture of the financial position or results of:

- the Enlarged Group had the transaction actually occurred as at the dates indicated therein; or

- the Enlarged Group at any future date or for any future periods.

Opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the accompanying unaudited pro forma financial information has been properly compiled on the
basis stated therein;

(b) such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the Company; and
(c) the adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the pro forma financial information as

disclosed pursuant to Rule 4.29(1) of the Listing Rules.

Yours faithfully,
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
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(IV) INDEBTEDNESS

V)

Borrowings

As at 31 October 2004, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of this indebtedness statement
prior to the printing of this Prospectus, the Enlarged Group had no outstanding bank borrowings.

As at 31 October 2004, with the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan being
completed, the Enlarged Group has HK$546 million due to the Sellers.

Mortgages and charges

As at 31 October 2004, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Enlarged Group has charged in favour of the
Sellers inter alia, its 50% shareholding in and loans to Dartina Development Limited, an associated
company of the Enlarged Group.

As at 31 October 2004, the Enlarged Group has finance lease payables of HK$1 million and repayable
within five years.

Contingent liability

As at 31 October 2004, the Enlarged Group had given a guarantee of approximately HK$17.3 million
for a banking facility granted to an associated company of the Group.

Disclaimer

Save as disclosed above, the Enlarged Group did not, at the close of business on 31 October 2004, have
any mortgages, charges, debentures, loan capital, bank loans and overdrafts, debt securities or other
similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances or acceptance credits or any guarantees or other
material contingent liabilities outstanding.

On 5 November 2004, Gala Film Distribution Limited (“Gala Film”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a revolving loan with Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
(“HSBC”) for a term of 3 to 12 months in the amount of HK$10 million (the “HSBC Loan”). On 7
December 2004, Gala Film drew down a bank loan in the amount of HK$5.8 million. The interest rate
applicable on outstanding indebtedness incurred under HSBC Loan is the best lending rate offered by
HSBC plus 3%. The HSBC Loan is secured by way of a debenture over all assets of Gala Film, and a
corporate guarantee in the amount of HK$10 million provided by the Company. The Directors have
confirmed that, save as disclosed above, there has been no material changes in the indebtedness and
contingent liabilities of the Enlarged Group since 31 October 2004.

WORKING CAPITAL
(i) The acquisition of 40% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan

A medium term loan facility of US$8 million (approximately HK$62.4 million) and a proposed
Rights Issue have been arranged to fund the consideration payable by Golden Sky under the
Acquisition Agreement (“40% financing”).

The Directors are of the opinion that after taking into account the aforesaid loan facility, the
expected net proceeds of the Rights Issue, the working capital requirements and the expected
cash flows of the Enlarged Group, the Enlarged Group will, following the completion of the
acquisition of 40% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan, have sufficient working capital for
its present requirements for the period from the date of this Prospectus to 31 December 2005.

(ii) The acquisition of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan

If one or both of the other Purchasers fail(s) to complete its/their purchase and if Golden Sky
elects to become the Step-in Purchaser, it will be acquiring additional interests in the Sale
Shares and the Shareholders Loans. In that event, the additional interest Golden Sky is acquiring
in Warner Village Taiwan will be partly financed by the 40% financing, with the remainder to be
financed by additional bank borrowings and proceeds from additional share placings other than
the Rights Issue. However, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company did not have an
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intention to purchase additional capital interests in Warner Village Taiwan or issue further
placements of Shares.

However, should the Company change its intention and decide to complete the acquisition of
100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan, except for the uncertainty for the Enlarged
Group in securing additional banking facilities and obtaining net proceeds from further share
placements other than the Rights Issue, the Directors are of the opinion that after taking into
account the success in obtaining additional banking facilities, the net proceeds of the Rights
Issue and further share placements, the working capital requirements and the expected cash
flows of the Enlarged Group, the Enlarged Group will, following the completion of the acquisition
of 100% equity interests of Warner Village Taiwan, have sufficient working capital for its present
requirements for the period from the date of this Prospectus to 31 December 2005.

(VI) MATERIALADVERSE CHANGE
As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors were not aware of any material adverse change in the

financial or trading position of the Group since 30 June 2004, the date to which the latest audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group were made up.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AND RESULTS OF OPERATION OF THE
ENLARGED GROUP

Business review
For the year ended 30 June 2002

During the year, the Group was primarily involved in film distribution and film exhibition whilst winding
down its film production activities. The demanding economic environment and difficult operating conditions
within the entertainment industry as a whole presented a series of challenges. At the same time, the number of
films being produced and the overall box office figures continued to fall dramatically, in particular with
respect to Chinese language films. A considerable effort was made to strengthen the core businesses of the
Group and to implement cost-cutting measures. Consequently, the Group closed its unprofitable or under-
performing non-core businesses including its music, television production, talent management and public
relations divisions. Despite such challenges, the Group’s financial standing remained healthy and was able to
operate debt-free.

For the year 2002, the Group incurred a loss of HK$86.6 million, compared to a loss of HK$74.5 million in
2001. The 2002 loss included non-recurring expenses of HK$41.2 million, from the divestiture of unprofitable
or under-performing non-core businesses. Such diverstiture would, however, lower the Group’s operating
expenditure in future years.

Box office receipts in Hong Kong was increased by 8% to HK$1,037 million in 2002, compared to 2001, due
to the success of several blockbuster films.

The exhibition business in Singapore improved considerably due to a successful marketing effort and a modest
increase in ticket prices. As a result, the Group derived a profit of HK$5.7 million from its associates in
Singapore.

In Malaysia, a major overhaul of the cinema assets of one of our associates was being completed. This
coincided with an increase in the number of blockbuster films, a reduction in the entertainment tax and
significantly increased box office receipts and admissions across the territory. The operating results of the
Group’s associates in Malaysia were also boosted by the trimming of operating costs, closure of under-
performing cinemas and an increase in ticket prices, which were all reflected in an improvement in the
operating results of both these associates whose losses dropped from HK$9.6 million in 2001 to HK$3.5
million in 2002.

In 2002 Warner Village Taiwan recorded a turnover of HK$239.2 million. This represented an increase of 21%
over their revenue in 2001. The increase in turnover was principally attributable to an increase in box office
receipts resulting from the opening of a new cinema multiplex in Kaohsiung (16 screens) and another two
cinema multiplexes in Taichung City (10 screens and 8 screens, respectively). However, due to lower than
expected fill rates, coupled with high start-up costs associated with the new cinema multiplexes, Warner
Village Taiwan recorded a net loss from ordinary activities of HK$43.0 million in 2002, compared to HK$11.2
million in 2001.
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For the year ended June 2003

During the year, film distribution and film exhibition became the principal activities of the Group. A further
slowndown in business was caused by a continuation of poor economic conditions and rampant piracy across
the region. In addition, the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”) had a significant impact
on the entertainment industry in Hong Kong.

For the year 2003, the Group incurred an increased loss of HK$141.4 million, compared to a loss of HK$86.6
million in 2002. The 2003 loss included non-recurring expenses of HK$84.1 million, a major portion of which
arose from production-related write downs, provisions for an IMAX project and cinema operations in Shanghai.
While these items adversely affected the results of the Group for the year 2003, the results of the Group for
future years will not be affected. The increase in losses did not affect the Group’s cash flows from operating
activities, which have improved compared to 2002. The Group’s expenditure was under control, head count
decreased marginally and the Group was able to continue operating with no outstanding bank loans.

Box office receipts in Hong Kong fell from HK$1,037 million in 2002 to HK$841 million in 2003 which was
principally attributable to the impact of SARS and other factors such as the high rental costs and an insufficient
supply of films.

Despite the SARS outbreak, our exhibition businesses outside of Hong Kong in Singapore and Malaysia
achieved their best results since the 1997 financial crisis. In Singapore, box office receipts increased by 7%
from HK$469 million in 2002 to HK$501 million in 2003. The Group’s local market share increased from
41.3% in 2002 to 43.5% in 2003. This was mainly attributable to better programming as well as the strong
performances of non-peak season releases such as “Lilo & Stitch” and “The Tuxedo”.

In Malaysia, the full effect of the reduction in entertainment tax saw overall box office receipts increasing by
HK$31 million from HK$193 million in 2002 to HK$224 million in 2003 and the Group’s market share also
increased from 81% in 2002 to 82% in 2003.

In Taiwan, Warner Village Taiwan recorded a turnover of HK$335.9 million for the year 2003, representing an
increase of 40% compared to 2002. This came about even though overall box office receipts in Taiwan itself
experienced a decline of approximately 15% in the calendar year 2003 compared to 2002, caused in large part
by the effects of SARS. The increase in turnover was principally attributable to the opening of two more new
cinema multiplexes located in Tainan (9 screens) and Hsinchu (8 screens) adding to a full year of operations
with respect to the three new cinema multiplexes opened in 2002. Net losses however increased from HK$43.0
million in 2002 to HK$61.8 million in 2003. This was mainly due to high start-up costs associated with the
opening of the new cinemas multiplexes mentioned above.

For the year ended 30 June 2004

The Group maintained its strategy of focusing on its core businesses of film distribution and exhibition whilst
management continued to implement cost-cutting measures to minimise administrative costs with a view to
increasing its long term competitiveness. The Group’s strategy received recognition from its industry peers,
resulting in the injection of new capital in August 2003. As a result of which, the Group’s financial standing
improved and it continued to operate without incurring any bank borrowings.

For the year 2004, the Group incurred a sharply reduced loss of HK$11.7 million, compared to a loss of
HK$141.4 million in 2003. The improvement was mainly attributable to an increased contribution from Chinese
film library distribution sales, the film exhibition businesses and the fact that major loss items in 2003 were
non-recurring. The turnover of the Group increased by 4% from HK$210.3 million in 2003 to HK$218.5
million in 2004. Gross profit increased by 23% from HK$101.0 million in 2003 to HK$124.4 million in 2004.
Cost control measures implemented by the Group since 2002 helped to reduce total operating costs by HK$8.2
million in 2004, compared to 2003.

Both the territories Singapore and Malaysia continued to perform above expectations in the year 2004. In
Singapore, successful marketing efforts improved the Group’s market share from 43.5% in the year 2003 to
44.1% in the year 2004. The Group’s share of the profits of its associates in Singapore in the year 2004 was
HK$16.3 million (2003: HK$12.2 million).

In Malaysia, the Group’s market share increased from 82% in the year 2003 to 83% in the year 2004. The
Group’s share of the profits from its associates in Malaysia in the year 2004 was HK$18.2 million (2003:
HK$6.7 million).
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Warner Village Taiwan recorded a turnover of HK$432.7 million for the year 2004, representing an increase of
approximately 29% compared to 2003. The increase in turnover was attributable to increased box office
receipts resulting from the opening of its seventh cinema multiplex located in Windance Shopping Centre in
Hsinchu City (5 screens) in November 2003, the commencement in the management of an eighth cinema
multiplex in north west Taipei City (8 screens) and an improvement in the overall fill rate. As a result, Warner
Village Taiwan turned in a maiden net profit from ordinary activities of HK$7.7 million.

Prospects

The Enlarged Group will continue to be headquartered in Hong Kong, supported by a strong presence in
Singapore, Malaysia and Taiwan. With the signing of the Mainland China-Hong Kong Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement (“CEPA”), the Enlarged Group will be actively looking for new investment
opportunities in Mainland China. The Enlarged Group is currently developing a new cinema multiplex in
Shenzhen, which has recently commenced operations in December 2004.

The Chinese language entertainment industry remains one filled with great potential within Southeast Asia and
the PRC. The Directors believe the Enlarged Group will continue to leverage its strength and vision across
Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia and Taiwan to further consolidate its position as a major film distributor and
cinema operator in the overseas Chinese market and in Southeast Asia and to exploit other growing markets
where Chinese language films have a significant potential and a strong market following.
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1. RESPONSIBILITY

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company.

The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information
contained in this circular (other than information relating to Warner Village Taiwan) and confirm,
having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, opinions expressed
in this circular by the Directors have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and there are
no other facts not contained in this circular, the omission of which would make any statement contained
herein misleading.

The issue of this circular has been approved by the Directors.
2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
(a) Disclosure of interests of Directors

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) and which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Directors’ interests in Shares
Number of Shares Percentage of
(L) = Long position shareholding
Name of Director Nature of Interest  Note (S) = Short position in the Company
Chow Ting Hsing, Interest of controlled 1 250,537,223 (L) 24.11
Raymond corporations 215,000,000 (S) 20.69

Phoon Chiong Kit Beneficial owner 2 20,600,000 (L) 1.98

Chan Sik Hong, David Beneficial owner 3 10,859,375 (L) 1.04

Lau Pak Keung Beneficial owner 1,280,000 (L) 0.12

(alternate director to
Phoon Chiong Kit)

Notes:

1. Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond is deemed to be interested in 250,537,223 Shares by virtue of his
100% beneficial holding in Planet Gold Associates Limited and Net City Limited, which holds
146,568,473 Shares and 103,968,750 Shares respectively.

2. Out of 20,600,000 Shares in which Phoon Chiong Kit is deemed to be interested, 14,600,000
Shares are shares issuable upon the exercise of share options granted by the Company to Mr.
Phoon under the Share Option Scheme.

3. Out of 10,859,375 Shares in which Chan Sik Hong, David is deemed to be interested, 5,000,000

Shares are the shares issuable upon the exercise of Share Options granted by the Company to Mr.
Chan under the Share Option Scheme.
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(i)

(iii)

Directors’ interest in associated corporations

Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond is also the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital
of Golden Harvest Film Enterprises Inc., which beneficially holds 114,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of Golden Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

In addition to the above, certain directors have non-beneficial equity interests in certain
subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Group solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Miscellaneous

Save as disclosed herein:

(aa)

(bb)

(co)

as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange;

as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors was materially interested in
any subsisting contract or arrangement which is significant in relation to the business
of the Group taken as a whole; and

since 30 June 2004, the date to which the latest published audited financial
statements of the Group were made up, none of the Directors has, or has had, any
direct or indirect interest in the promotion of or in any assets which have been
acquired, disposed of by or leased to or which are proposed to be acquired, disposed
of by or leased to, any member of the Group.
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(b)

Disclosure of interests of Substantial Shareholders

As at the Latest Practicable Date, according to the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO and, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons or entities who had
an interest or a short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or
of any other company which is a member of the Group, or in any options in respect of such share

capital were as follows:

Name of shareholder

Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond

Chow Yuan Hsi Hua, Felicia

Planet Gold Associates Limited

Net City Limited

FB Gemini Capital Limited
Li Ka-shing

Mayspin Management Limited

Garex Resources Limited
Typhoon Music (PRC) Limited

EMI Group Plc

Virgin Music Group Ltd.

EMI Group Worldwide Limited

Cheng Tung Hon, Norman

Typhoon Records Limited

Capacity

Interest of controlled
corporations

Spouse’s interest

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Other

Interest of controlled
corporations

Interest of controlled
corporations

Beneficial owner
Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled
corporation

Interest of controlled
corporation

Interest of controlled
corporation

Interest of controlled
corporation

Interest of controlled
corporation

~79 _

Number

Notes of shares
(L) = Long position

(S) = Short position

1 250,537,223 (L)
215,000,000 (S)

1 250,537,223 (L)
215,000,000 (S)

1 146,568,473 (L)
145,000,000 (S)

1 103,968,750 (L)
70,000,000 (S)

2 264,846,875 (L)
3 178,054,000 (L)
3 178,054,000 (L)
3 150,414,000 (L)
4 155,000,000 (L)
4 155,000,000 (L)
4 155,000,000 (L)
4 155,000,000 (L)
4 155,000,000 (L)
4 155,000,000 (L)

Percentage
of shareholding
in the Company

24.11%
20.69%

24.11%
20.69%

14.10%
13.95%

10.00%
6.74%

20.00%
17.13%

17.13%

14.47%
11.93%

11.93%

11.93%

11.93%

11.93%

11.93%
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Percentage
Number  of shareholding

Name of shareholder Capacity Notes of shares  in the Company

(L) = Long position
(S) = Short position

Feng Yuen Cheung, Lily Spouse’s interest 4 155,000,000 (L) 11.93%
PAMA Group Inc. Beneficial owner - 123,284,027 (L) 11.86%
Chan Kong Sang, Jackie Beneficial owner, N 65,600,000 (L) 6.31%

founder of a

discretionary trust
and interest of

controlled corporation

Everlasting Property Limited Beneficial owner 5 55,600,000 (L) 5.35%

CDIB & Partners Investment Interest of 6 54,696,000 (L) 5.26%

Holding Corporation controlled corporation

CDIB & Partners Investment Beneficial owner 6 54,696,000 (L) 5.26%

Notes:

1.

Holding (Cayman) Ltd.

Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond is deemed to be interested in 250,537,223 Shares by virtue of his 100%
beneficial holding in Planet Gold Associates Limited and Net City Limited which holds 146,568,473
Shares and 103,968,750 Shares, respectively. Chow Yuan Hsi Hua, Felicia, the spouse of Chow Ting
Hsing, Raymond, is deemed to be interested in the same shares in which Chow Ting Hsing, Raymond is
interested.

FB Gemini Capital Limited is deemed to be interested in 264,846,875 Shares by virtue of its agreement to
acquire an interest in all Rights Shares in the event that no Shareholder takes up his/her/its entitlement
under the Rights Shares. Its percentage of shareholding in the Company is calculated based on the
number of Shares in issue as enlarged by the Rights Shares proposed to be issued and the outstanding
share options entitling the holders thereof to subscribe for an aggregate of 20,100,000 Shares.

Li Ka-shing is deemed to be interested in 178,054,000 Shares by virtue of his 100% beneficial holding in
Mayspin Management Limited which in turn owns the entire interest in each of Garex Resources Limited
which holds 150,414,000 Shares, Podar Investment Limited which holds 25,000,000 Shares, and Oscar
Resources Limited which holds 2,640,000 Shares.

EMI Group Plc has 100% control of Virgin Music Group Limited, which has 100% control of EMI Group
Worldwide Limited, which in turn has a 50% shareholding in Typhoon Music (PRC) Limited. Cheng Tung
Hon, Norman has 100% control of Typhoon Records Limited, which has a 50% shareholding in Typhoon
Music (PRC) Limited. Each of EMI Group Plc, Virgin Music Group Limited, EMI Group Worldwide
Limited, Cheng Tung Hon, Norman and Typhoon Records Limited is deemed to be interested in the
155,000,000 Shares held by Typhoon Music (PRC) Limited. Feng Yuen Cheung, Lily, the spouse of
Cheng Tung Hon, Norman, is deemed to be interested in the same shares in which Cheng Tung Hon,
Norman is interested. The relevant percentage of shareholding in the Company is calculated based on the
number of Shares in issue as enlarged by the Rights Shares proposed to be issued.

Chan Kong Sang, Jackie is deemed to be interested in 65,600,000 Shares of which 5,000,000 Shares are
beneficially owned; 5,000,000 are held by a discretionary trust of which he was a founder; and 55,600,000
Shares are beneficially held through Everlasting Property Limited, a company 100% controlled by him.

CDIB & Partners Investment Holding Corporation is deemed to be interested in 54,696,000 Shares by
virtue of its 100% shareholding in CDIB & Partners Investment Holding (Cayman) Ltd., which holds
these shares.

Save as disclosed herein and so far as is known to the Directors, as at the Latest Practicable
Date, no person had an interest or a short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or no person was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of the Company, or of any other company which is a member of the Group, or in any options in
respect of such share capital.
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3. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, there are no material contracts (other than contracts entered into in the
ordinary course of business) which have been entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries in the
two years immediately preceding the date of this circular and are or may be material:

(a) the placing agreement dated 11 July 2003 and made between the Company and FB Gemini
Capital Limited (“FB Gemini”) relating to, amongst others, the placing of 83,400,000 Shares
through FB Gemini to placees and the granting of an option to FB Gemini for the issuance of
additional Shares to placees in accordance with the terms thereof;

(b) the subscription agreement dated 14 July 2004 and made between the Company and Typhoon
Music (PRC) Limited relating to, amongst others, the allotment and issuance of 155,000,000
Shares in accordance with the terms thereof;

(c) the joint venture agreement dated 14 July 2004 and made between Golden Harvest Entertainment
Company Limited, Abba Movies Company Limited, Typhoon Music (PRC) Limited and GH
Finance Limited, relating to the establishment of GH Finance Limited solely to make loans for
Chinese language motion picture production;

(d) the Agreement; and

(e) the underwriting agreement dated 26 November 2004 and made between the Company and FB
Gemini, relating to the Rights Issue of not less than 259,821,875 Rights Shares and not more
than 264,846,875 Rights Shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company.

4. LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries was engaged in any
litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material importance was
known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

S. DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had entered into, or was proposing to enter into,
any service contract with any member of the Group which will not expire or be determinable by the
employer within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation). None
of the Directors’ aggregate remuneration and benefits in kind receivable will be varied as a result of the
Acquisition.

6. PROCEDURES FOR DEMANDING A POLL BY SHAREHOLDERS

At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands
unless a poll is required under the Listing Rules or any other applicable laws, rules or regulations or
unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other
demand for a poll) a poll is demanded:

(1) by the chairman of the meeting; or

(i) by at least three Shareholders present in person (or, in the case of a Shareholder being a
corporation, by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote
at the meeting; or

(iii) by any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person (or, in the case of a Shareholder being a
corporation, by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy and representing not less than
one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the right to vote at the
meeting; or

(iv) by any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person (or, in the case of a Shareholder being a
corporation, by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy and holding Shares in the Company
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid
up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the Shares conferring that
right.
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A demand by a person as proxy for a Shareholder or in the case of a Shareholder being a corporation by
its duly authorised representative shall be deemed to be the same as a demand by the Shareholder.

Subject to any special rights or restrictions as to voting attached to any Shares by or in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company, at any general meeting on a show of hands, every Shareholder who is
present in person (or, in the case of a Shareholder being a corporation, by its duly authorised
representative) or by proxy shall (save as provided otherwise in the bye-laws of the Company) have one
vote. On a poll, every Shareholder present in person (or, in the case of a Shareholder being a corporation,
by its duly authorised representative), or by proxy shall have one vote for every fully paid Share of
which he is the holder (but so that no amount paid or credited as paid up on a share in advance of calls
or instalments shall be treated for the foregoing purposes as paid on the Share). A person entitled to
more than one vote on a poll need not use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.

7. QUALIFICATION OF EXPERT

The following is the qualification of the expert who has given its opinion or advice which is contained
in this circular:

Name Qualification

Ernst & Young Certified Public Accountants

8. CONSENTS

Ernst & Young has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this circular with the
inclusion of its reports on the Group and Warner Village Taiwan for the year ended 30 June 2004 dated
11 October 2004 and 22 December 2004, respectively, and the references to its name, as the case may
be, in the form and context in which they appear.

Save as disclosed herein, Ernst & Young does not have any shareholding in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate persons to
subscribe for securities in any member to the Group.

Ernst & Young does not have any interest direct or indirect, in any assets which have been, since 30
June 2004 (being the date to which the latest published audited financial statements of the Group were
made up), acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group, or are proposed to be
acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group.

9. MISCELLANEOUS

(a) So far as the Directors are aware, there is no voting, trust or other agreement or arrangement or
understanding (other than an outright sale) entered into by or binding upon any Shareholders.

(b) The principal place of business of the Company is at 16th Floor, The Peninsula Office Tower, 18
Middle Road, Tsimshatsui, Hong Kong.

(c) The Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company is Tengis Limited of Ground Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

(d) The qualified accountant of the Company is Yuen Kwok On. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Yuen has over 13 years’
experience in the accounting field. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in international
accounting firms for more than five years.

(e) The English text of this circular shall prevail over Chinese text in the case of any inconsistency.
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10.

11.

12.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ang Puay Koon, Susan, aged 41, the Company Secretary and Director of Legal Affairs of the Group,
graduated with a Law Degree from the University of Kent at Canterbury in England and has a LL.M.
from the London School of Economics and Political Science. Ms. Ang is a member of Gray’s Inn and
has been admitted to the English Bar, the Malaysian Bar and the Hong Kong Bar.

MATERIAL CHANGES

Save as disclosed in this circular, the Directors are not aware of any material adverse changes in the
financial or trading position of the Group since 30 June 2004, the date to which the last published
audited accounts of the Group were made up.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the head office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at 16th Floor, The Peninsula Office Tower, 18 Middle Road,
Tsimshatsui, Hong Kong during normal business hours on any weekday (except Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays) from the date of this circular up to and including 14 January 2005 and will also be
available for inspection at the Special General Meeting.:

(a) the memorandum of association and the bye-laws of the Company;
(b) the annual reports of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2003 and 30 June 2004;

(c) the accountants’ report of Warner Village Taiwan prepared by Ernst & Young, the text of which
is set out in Appendix II to this circular, together with the statement of adjustments;

(d) the opinion prepared by Ernst & Young in respect of the unaudited pro forma financial information
of the Enlarged Group the text of which is set out in Appendix III to this circular;

(e) the material contracts referred to in the paragraph headed “Material Contracts” in this appendix;
and

(H) a copy of the consent letter given by Ernst & Young dated 23 December 2004.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special general meeting of Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited will be held at Function Room — Peach and Cherry, M/F, InterContinental Hong Kong, 18 Salisbury
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong on 10 January 2005 at 1:00 p.m. for the purpose of considering and, if thought

(-

b

Golden Harvest
GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(GEABERE GEE) AR A

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 1132)

fit, passing the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

“THAT the acquisition of 40% of the capital interest of Warner Village Cinemas Co., Ltd. (“Warner
Village Taiwan”) and related shareholders loans advanced by Warner Bros. Entertainment Inc., (“Warner
Bros.”) and Village Cinemas International Pty Ltd., (“Village Cinemas”) to Warner Village Taiwan, for
an aggregate purchase price of US$15.2 million (approximately HK$118.56 million), pursuant to a sale
and loan purchase agreement dated 18 October 2004 and effective as of 19 October 2004 (the
“Agreement”) made between Warner Bros., Village Cinemas, Golden Sky Pacific Limited (“Golden
Sky”), two other purchasers and the Company, a copy of which has been produced to this Meeting and
marked “A” and signed by the Chairman of the Meeting for the purpose of identification, be and is
hereby approved and the execution, delivery and performance by Golden Sky and the Company of the
Agreement be and are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved and THAT the directors of the Company
be and are hereby authorised to do on behalf of the Company whatever they may consider necessary,
desirable or expedient for the purpose of, or in connection with, the implementation and completion of

the said acquisition.”

“THAT subject to the resolution set out as Resolution 1 in the notice convening this Meeting being
passed, in the event that one or both of the other purchasers fail(s) to complete its/their purchase at
completion under the Agreement (as defined in the resolution set out as Resolution 1 in the notice
convening this Meeting) and if Golden Sky Pacific Limited elects to step-in and take up the obligations
of such purchaser(s) under the said Agreement, its acquisition of up to 100% of the capital interest of
Warner Village Taiwan and related shareholders loans pursuant to the terms of the said Agreement be
and is hereby approved and THAT the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do on
behalf of the Company whatever they may consider necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose

of, or in connection with, the implementation and completion of the said acquisition.”

By Order of the Board
Ang Puay Koon, Susan
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 23 December 2004

B

For identification purposes only
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Registered office:
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong:
16th Floor

The Peninsula Office Tower

18 Middle Road

Tsimshatsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Notes:

A form of proxy for use at the meeting is being dispatched to the shareholders of the Company together with a copy of
this notice.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in
writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under its seal or under the hand of any officer, attorney or other person
authorised to sign the same.

Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice shall be entitled to appoint one or
more proxies to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is
signed, or a certified copy of such power or authority, must be deposited at the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Tengis Limited, at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting in person at the
meeting convened or any adjourned meeting and in such event, the form of proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

Where there are joint holders of any Share, any one of such joint holders may vote, either in person or by proxy, in
respect of such Share as if he/she were solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such joint holders are present at the
meeting, the most senior shall alone be entitled to vote, whether in person or by proxy. For this purpose, seniority shall be
determined by the order in which the names stand on the register of members of the Company in respect of the joint
holding.
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